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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEEBEERASEHN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Eav Yin (alias Duong Khai Nhon), aged 70, is the founder of
the Company and a member of Chaozhou Committee of Guangdong
Province of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(BREBMINTHIHZEE) and was appointed as an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company on 22nd November 2006. He is also
the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Eav
Yin is a Cambodian Chinese and prior to his establishing of a Hong
Kong company in 1968 as an importing agent for watch distribution
business in Cambodia, had extensive experience of distributing
watches in Cambodia and Vietnam. Mr. Eav Yin is the father of Mr.
Eav Ming Keong, Kinson and the spouse of Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, a
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Eav Yin is a director and a
controlling shareholder of Century Hero International Limited, which is a
controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson, aged 35, holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Interior Design and Technology and a Master of Arts degree
in Art, Design and Visual Culture from the London Guildhall University.
After graduation, Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson has practiced in an
architecture firm in London for 2 years. Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson is
a son of Mr. Eav Yin. He was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 22nd November 2006.

Mr. Au Shiu Leung, Alex, aged 45, has held positions as chief financial
officer and financial controller of certain Hong Kong listed companies.
He was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 11th
January 2007 and as company secretary on 19th April 2007. He was
previously employed by the Company from 1995 to 1997 and was
its company secretary from 1996 to 1997. Mr. Au is a member of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an
associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He holds a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting) degree with honours
from the University of Birmingham.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Si Ming, aged 52, is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and an associate member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 8th August 1998. He is also the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. Mr. Lai was elected as the Vice Chairman,
General Practice Division of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
during the years from 2001 to 2003. Mr. Lai has been practicing as
a professional surveyor since 1983 and has considerable experience
in the property field. Mr. Lai holds a Master Degree of Business
Administration from Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lai held
directorship as independent non-executive director of The Sun’s Group
Limited during the years from 2002 to 2003.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline, aged 40, graduated with LLB (Hons)
at King’s College, London University, UK in 1992, and was admitted to
both the UK Bar (Middle Temple, UK) and the Hong Kong Bar in 1993.
Ms. Wong is a practicing barrister in Hong Kong. She was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 16th
December 2006. She is also a member of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent, aged 40, has around 20 years
experience in accounting and auditing and is the sole proprietor of a
firm of Certified Public Accountants practicing in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee
is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He holds a Master Degree in Corporate Finance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 16th December
2006. He is also a member of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jonathan Darracott, aged 44, holds a BA Hons degree in
jewellery and silversmithing design and is a graduate member of the
British Horological Institute, the Antiquarian Horological Society and
a Freeman of the Worshipful Company of Clockmakers. He joined the
Group in March 2007 as general manager responsible for the Group’s
Juvenia operations and business development. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Darracott has worked for a major watch company in London
and for twelve years in Sotheby’s international auction house where he
became the head for the European Watch department. He was involved
in setting two then world records: the most expensive watch and the
most expensive horological collection ever sold at auction.

Mr. Poon Kwok Sing, Sammy, aged 51, joined the Group in 1989. Mr.
Poon has considerable experience in watch retailing, wholesale and
brand management. During the period from April 1992 to March 1993,
he was elected as the Director of the Federation of Hong Kong Watch
Trades & Industries Limited which is an official association representing
the watch industry in Hong Kong. Mr. Poon is the general manager in
charge of the Group’s watch retailing business in the PRC.
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| BRARBIRFRLEESEEE Timecity Beiing APM - Juvenia Boutique | 2. B ZRBIt R R LB HES &S
Timecity Beijing APM - GlashUtte Boutique | 3. BHRZRBILEIHRELHEINZEIE Timecity Beiing APM - Blancpain
Boutique | 4. BEZFRWALFHREL FHb T HE & Timecity Beijing APM - Cartier Boutique | 5. a8 R HH R & L5H
IE®E & E Timecity Beiing APM - Vacheron Constantin Boutique | 6. BI1& &Mt R ERLHEME R Timecity Beiing APM
Flagship store | 7. 7 i3 & i L8 B = A EEE Timecity Shanghai Nan Jing Road West Flagship store

.
-

VACHERONICONSTANTIN




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MERE
2010 2009 Change
—E-EF —ETNF e
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEET B & T Bt
Operations re
Turnover ] 777 619 26
Profit attributable to owners of the EBRARTFEAE A
Company il 51 40 28
Earnings per share — Basic BRAEN-ER 8.53 HK cents 6.61 HK cents 29
8.5378 1l 6.617 1l
Final dividend proposed after MEMREBRIRE 2
the end of the reporting period REAAR B 9 6 50
2010 2009 Change
—E-ZF —ZEThEF Z2%)
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEET B &% B
Financial position B A& AR R
Total assets mEE 520 462 13
Shareholders’ funds AR R = 404 357 13




1. BEEZREIL SRR L I EEE Timecity Beijing APM - Breguet Boutique | 2. B & &Rt R LS EEE Timecity
Beiing APM - TagHeuer Boutique | 3. i@ & & &ML mRH R L B #I8: H & & Timecity Beijing APM - Zenith Boutique | 4. @
ZEFILFIH R LB E B &L Timecity Beiing APM - IWC Boutique | 5. BE&Z &t m# R 2B KT E & IE Timecity Beijing
APM - Omega Boutique | 6. B 5 & RERR B F e S & iE Timecity Shenyang Trader Tudor Boutique | 7. 7588 &
BERARBEBEZENE Timecity Shanghai Nan Jing Road West IWC Boutique | 8. BREZEWM LB RAKREREEE
Timecity Shanghai Nan Jing Road West Audemars Piguet Boutique




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year under review was a mixed challenge year for us. In the first six
months of the financial year, the financial tsunami continuing to affect
the global economy but the PRC economy remained stable during that
period. The Group’s turnover increased by 53% in the second half of
the financial year compared with the same period in the previous year
which was adversely affected by the start of the financial crisis. Overall,
turnover for the year increased by 26% over last year to HK$777
million. Same store sales growth maintained similar growth rate
compared with last year. The competition in the luxury watch market
mentioned in last year’s annual report continued and our gross profit
margin dropped from last year’s 37% to this year’s 32%.

Distribution costs increased by 8% compared by last year. The
increase was mainly attributable to extra rental expenses as and staff
costs in line with the increase in turnover as well as additional rental
from new or expanded shops. Administrative expenses increased due
to transaction fees charged on credit card sales which rose in line with
the increase in credit card transactions and foreign exchange losses.

With the overall improvement in market sentiment, the market value
of the investment properties and the available-for-sale investments
held by the Group have increased resulting in valuation gain of
approximately HK$12 million.

In Shenyang, the Group opened its fourth Vacheron Constantin
boutique as well as two other new brand boutiques specializing in
Tudor and Girard-Perregaux. The Timecity Shenyang flagship store was
closed temporarily for renovation. In Shanghai, the Group’s Timecity
multi-brand store on Nanjing Road West was closed for redevelopment
into Audemars Piguet and IWC boutiques. In Hong Kong, the expanded
Rolex/Tudor boutique reopened for business as we entered into the
2009/2010 financial year.

During the year, the Group continued to make investments to improve
its operations as part of our ongoing process. Timecity upgraded its
ERP system to facilitate better management and control of resources.
New training programs are being put in place to improve the service
quality of our associates in different areas such as customer service,
selling techniques, product knowledge, etc.
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1. BEREZRE EEHERE hERERBENE Timecity Shanghai New World Rolex & Tudor Boutique | 2. 7& 51 & Fi5i LGk
KREEISER K FREE E Timecity Shanghai Time Square Omega Boutique | 3. Bl & &ML R EINEEE Timecity Beijing
Blancpain Boutique | 4. &5 2 R4t L5 FHE E & I Timecity Beijing Vacheron Constantin Boutique | 5. @& &R X
JBIRR[E Timecity Tianjin Far Eastern Department store | 6. 7 T8 2 R A &7 & B & mEAE & Timecity Chengdu Chun Xi Road
Flagship store | 7. @i &t =R A ESE Timecity Beijing Oriental Plaza store | 8. @i &R R EHEEE Timecity
Beijing Audemars Piguet Boutique




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31st As at 31st
March 2010 March 2009
R-B-2F R-TENF
=H=+-—H =A=+—H”
Beijing 6 6
3lE R
Shanghai 8 10
i
Shenyang 9 8
&S
Chengdu, Chongging and Urumugi 4 4
RE - BEERSBAE
Hong Kong 1 1
BB
28 29
FINANCIAL REVIEW B} % O g
Results review ¥EOR

The Group recorded turnover of HK$777 million for the year ended
31st March 2010, (2009: HK$619 million) representing an increase of
26% (2009: 30%) over the last year. The increase was attributable to
the contribution from our new POSs compared with the prior reporting
year.

Distribution costs increased by 8% to HK$183 million mainly due to
increase in rental expenses as more POSs came into operation during
the year. Administrative expenses also rose 18% from HK$32 million
to HK$37 million due to the increase in bank charges, depreciation
charges and exchange losses as a result of the increase in sales
activity.

Owing to the recovery of the property market in Hong Kong during the
year, our investment properties recorded valuation gains of HK$9.55
million (2009: valuation losses of HK$4.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31st March 2010, the Group’s total cash balance amounted to
HK$66 million (2009: HK$50 million). The increase was mainly due to
cash generated from operating activities which is slightly offset by the
increase in renovation charges and payment of dividend. The Group
has banking facilities amounting to HK$40 million which were secured
by certain leasehold properties, prepaid lease payments as well as
certain investment properties. During the year, the Group has borrowed
a money market loan of HK$10 million from these facilities and fully
repaid it before the year end. Gearing rate of the Group, expressed as
a ratio of total borrowing over total equity, was 0% as at 31st March
2010 (2009: 1%).

Foreign exchange risks

The Group views its main currencies as Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and Swiss Francs. The Group monitors its exposure to foreign
exchange risks, and when it considers necessary and appropriate, will
hedge its foreign exchange risks by using financial instruments.

PROSPECTS

According to statistics from the Federation of the Swiss Watch
Industry, export of Swiss watches to China for the period of January
to June 2010 reached approximately 483 million Swiss Francs
representing an increase of approximately 91% over the same period
in the previous year. With the continued growth in China economy
and the increasing number of China tourists visiting Hong Kong, we
will continue our development strategy to continue expansion of the
Timecity development program into the second and third tier cities as
well as in Hong Kong. The preparation for the opening of a number
of new POSs are well underway and, since the year end, Timecity
has opened in Wuxi as well as a new POS in Shenyang Hang Lung
Plaza Phase 1. Search and negotiations for other suitable locations in
mainland China and Hong Kong are part of our plan to strengthen our
foothold.

There is no doubt that the market will continue to be competitive. Now
that the global economy has stabilized, we are confident that, with the
support of the top Swiss brands, we are on track with our development
plan.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 on the
financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the
financial year are set out in Note 17 on the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2010 and the
state of the Company and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 28 to 102.

SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars of the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 26 on the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors resolved not to pay interim dividend (2009: HK$Nil)
but have proposed a final dividend of 1.5 HK cents per share for the
year ended 31st March 2010 (2009: 1 HK cent per share) subject to
the approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The period for closure of register of members of the Company
and the date of annual general meeting would be announced later.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
the Note 17 on the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in Note 14 on the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties during the year are
set out in Note 16 on the financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders and

movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in Note 28 on the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEBWRS

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of Company’s listed securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year.

BORROWING

Details of the borrowing are set out in Note 25 on the financial
statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31st March 2010, the Group’s largest supplier
contributed approximately 31.8% of the total purchases for the year
and the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s
top five suppliers represented approximately 79% of the Group’s total
purchases.

Since the customer base of the Group is very wide, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers are approximately
3.3% of total sales during the year.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owning more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five financial years is set
out on page 103.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Eav Yin (Chairman)
Eav Ming Keong, Kinson
Au Shiu Leung, Alex

Independent non-executive Directors:

Lai Si Ming
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent

Mr. Eav Yin, Mr. Au Shiu Leung, Alex and Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson
shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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The independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract
with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2010, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be and were recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEBRS

RBARBAY  BIFRTEEABERE -

BEUEREBEEFZEFTHARAREWE QRN
BRI VEAASEERN —FAKZKILMAELREE
CEERBERIN ZRIBEL

EERTETRASKRN - BRARMRES
Zigm

RZZB-—ZF=A=+—B ARAEELTETH
ABEARBREEMAAEEE (EEA(EHLBE
B (& Z R A E RG] ]) SEXVER) iy - 2R
SEFETEE - MRERF MABEIIEXVEET R
F8OMEBAMARA R RO R KR (BIER
BESFMPIERIZZERXREREFLIRAES
ZHEBRRR)  RBEEF R EEIIFEI520HE
BIAMEBEIABRTHREFEZECMREBEEBHER
SRARARZES EMARR (T EMmRAD M+ ME
ZEMETAEFTETESRHNREST A ([REST
A1) BBAMARRB RE XA EELORBMT

Long positions in shares of the Company RAR2A3ARMZER
Approximate
percentage of
aggregate
interests to
Number of total issued
ordinary share capital
Nature of shares held BWEREE
Name of Directors interest B8 BITRABE
EEsR EEME ZERHE BAES T
%
Mr. Eav Yin Bk Note #7 s 346,764,261 57.73
Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson 15 AR 58 5t 4 Personal {8 A 707,400 0.12

Note: Among the 346,764,261 shares in which Mr. Eav Yin is deemed to have
interests under the SFO (a) 19,531,800 shares are personal interest of Mr.
Eav Yin, (b) 804,600 shares are held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung (spouse of
Mr. Eav Yin), (c) 253,633,692 shares by Century Hero International Limited,
(d) 932,400 shares by Debonair Company Limited, (e) 9,986,364 shares by
Goodideal Industrial Limited, (f) 1,275,336 shares by Hexham International
Limited, (g) 1,423,269 shares by Goodness Management Limited and
(h) 59,176,800 shares by Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation
(as a trustee of Eav An Unit Trust). Century Hero International Limited,
Debonair Company Limited, Hexham International Limited, and Goodness
Management Limited are wholly owned and Goodideal Industrial Limited
is 87% owned by Mr. Eav Yin. Eav An Unit Trust is a discretionary trust of
which Mr. Eav Yin is the founder, the beneficiaries include Mr. Eav Yin, his
wife and their children.
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Limited#% A& }(h)59,176,800% A% {3 FChanchhaya
Trustee Holding Corporation (E&Eav An Unit Trust
ZETAN)FEE -HHBEE AR AR - Debonair
Company Limited * Hexham International Limited -
Goodness Management Limited¥J 51— £ 2 &
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Save as disclosed herein, as at 31st March 2010, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required to
be recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. In addition, save
as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age had been
granted or had exercised any rights to subscribe for any equity or debt
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the 2002 Share Option Scheme is to
encourage qualifying grantees to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. Qualifying grantees of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme mean (i) any employee or any business-related consultant,
agent, representative or advisor of the Company or any subsidiary or
any affiliate; or (ii) any supplier, agent or consultant who provide goods
or services to the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iii) any
customer of the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iv) any
business ally or joint venture partner of the Company or any affiliate.
Details of the 2002 Share Option Scheme and movement during the
year ended 31st March 2010 are set out in Note 27 on the financial
statements.

Refreshment of 2002 Share Option Scheme mandate limit (the
“Refreshment”) and amendment of rules of 2002 Share Option Scheme
(the “Amendment”) had been approved at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 26th August 2008. Details of the Refreshment and
the Amendment were contained in the circular to shareholders dated
1st August 2008.

No option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
year ended 31st March 2010 and as 31st March 2010, there were no
outstanding option granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2010 there was no outstanding options granted by
the Company under the 2002 Share Option Scheme to the Directors
to subscribe for shares of the Company, as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year, was the Company
or any of its associated corporations a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the Directors or their spouses or children under 18 years of
age was granted any right to subscribe for any shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any of its associated corporations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no Director is
considered to have interests in the businesses which compete or are
likely to compete with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR
RIGHTS

Other than the 2002 Share Option Scheme as explained in Note 27 on
the financial statements, the Company had no outstanding convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at 31st March 2010 and
there was no issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31st March 2010, so far as is known to any Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of the Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept
by the Company or required to be notified under Section 336 of the
SFO:

BRARPZEXIES

RZZ-—ZF=A=+—B BEALARRAEERE
ETBRABMM > THIAL(ARBEEREIETHA
BRI RAR B Z ) MR O F B RIRES R
HEEPIEXVEEFE2 K370 8 2 R XA M A R B E -
HEBERARBAFE ZBRMIIRRES P E K
PIEIBCIRATHEG 2 ERIKA

Approximate

Number of percentage of
ordinary shares issued share
beneficial held capital
Name of shareholder Notes BRER HEBTRE
REREME & ZEREE BHES
%
Mdm. Lam Kim Phung e Bzt 1 346,764,261 57.73
Century Hero International BB B R A A
Limited 2 253,633,692 42.22
Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Chanchhaya Trustee Holding
Corporation Corporation 3 59,176,800 9.85
Covenbhills Limited Covenbhills Limited 4 97,020,972 16.15
Notes: e -

1. These shares include 804,600 shares held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung and
the remaining 345,959,661 shares represent the interest held by Mr. Eav
Yin, spouse of Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, whose interests are disclosed in the
above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

2. Century Hero International Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Eav Yin who is
also a director of this company.

3. Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation is trustee of Eav An Unit Trust, a
discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Eav Yin, his wife
and their children.

4. Covenhills Limited is owned equally by Mr. Leong Lou Teck, Mr. Leong Lum
Thye, Miss Leong Yoke Kheng and Mr. Leong Siew Khuen.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in shares of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2010, there were no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company as having an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws although there is no restriction against such right under Bermuda
law.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There are 505 employees in the Group as at 31st March 2010. The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages to employees in line
with market trends. Incentives such as discretionary bonuses and staff
share options are offered to motivate employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2010 were
audited by CCIF CPA Limited. A resolution will be submitted at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint CCIF
CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

EXPRESSION OF GRATITUDE

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express its gratitude
to all staff members, shareholders, bankers, customers, suppliers and
professional advisors for the sincere support to the Group.

By Order of the Board

Eav Yin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th July 2010
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices by emphasising a quality board of directors,
sound internal control, transparency and accountability to all the
shareholders of the Company.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31st March
2010 except for the deviation from code provisions A.1.1 and A.4.1 and
those discussed below:

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted by private
act, the Asia Commercial Holdings Limited Company Act, 1989 of
Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act,
director holding office as executive chairman or managing director shall
not be subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting
as provided in the Bye-Laws.

As the Company is bounded by the provisions of the 1989 Act, at this
time, the Bye-Laws cannot be amended to fully reflect the requirements
of the Code. As such, a special resolution was passed at the special
general meeting held on 28th March 2007 to amend the Bye-Laws of
the Company so that, inter alia, (i) every director (save for a director
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director) of the Company shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years;
(i) a director may be removed by an ordinary resolution in general
meeting instead of a special resolution; and (iii) any director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional director shall
hold office until the next following general meeting, instead of the next
annual general meeting.

To enhance good corporate governance practice, Mr. Eav Yin, the
Chairman of the Board has confirmed to the Board that he will
voluntarily retire from his directorship at annual general meeting of the
Company at least once every three years in order for the Company to
comply with the Code, provided that being eligible for re-election, he
may offer himself for re-election at the annual general meeting.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that
business activities and decision making processes are regulated in a
proper and prudent manner.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors of the Company, all
of them confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and the Code of Conduct during the year
ended 31st March 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decisions and financial
performance. The management of the Group is responsible for the day-
to-day management and operation of the respective individual business
unit.

The Board comprises three Executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The biographical details of the Directors are
set out on page 4 of this annual report.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
opinions raised by the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company in the Board meetings facilitate the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. A balanced
composition of Executive and non-executive Directors also generates
a strong independent element on the Board, which allows independent
and objective decision making process for the best interests of the
Company.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all of them to
be independent.
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The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group. During the year, 3 Board regular meetings
were held which did not fully comply with code provision A.1.1. The
Board will improve this meeting arrangement to comply with this
provision in the future. Moreover, 2 Audit Committee meetings and
1 Remuneration Committee meeting were held during the year. The
individual attendance of Directors in these meetings was set out below:

E=ZgTHHE eI AKBEZHBREBRR -
AEE BESGEBRTZATHERE KA xTE2ET
STAHEXAAMERE - EZEHNRREAENLETEE
ZRPFANBTIERE - W AFEEEDRITRE
REBEh-RFNEEEEH ZFERRERZ

BY HELETIENT

Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Committee
Name of Director meetings meetings meetings
EEpE EEEER EXZEEEER FMEEEE:
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Eav Yin B hAE 3/3 N/A T~ iE F 11
Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson 15 EAGR S A 2/3 N/A “I~ 3@ F N/A “I & B
Mr. Au Shiu Leung, Alex RERLE 2/3 N/A i@ A N/A 3@ A
Independent non-executive BIYFHITES

Directors

Mr. Lai Si Ming BERLEE 2/3 2/2 1/1
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline Tzt 1/3 1/2 11
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent FEFLE 2/3 2/2 1/1

Mr. Eav Yin, the Chairman of the Company, is the father of Mr. Eav
Ming Keong, Kinson, who is an Executive Director of the Company.
Save as disclosed herein, there is no financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationship among members of the Board or
between the Chairman and the chief executive officer.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is Mr. Eav Yin while the function of the chief executive
officer is divided between the remaining Executive Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive director
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

During the year, the non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and re-election at annual general meeting
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are not less exacting than
those in the Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has not set up a nomination committee. Pursuant to
the Company’s Bye-Laws, the Board is empowered to appoint any
person as a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
member of the Board. The selection criteria are mainly based on the
professional qualification and experience of the candidate. Newly
appointed directors will be given an induction and a manual on the
duties and responsibilities as a director of a listed company both under
the Listing Rules and applicable laws. A newly appointed director
must retire and be re-elected at the first general meeting after his
first appointment. At each annual general meeting, one-third of the
directors, save for a director holding office as chairman or managing
director, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act, director holding office
as executive chairman or managing director shall not be subject
to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting. As the
Company is bounded by the provision of such Act, at this time, the
Bye-Laws cannot be amended to fully reflect the requirements of the
Code. Therefore, in spirit of good corporate governance practice, the
Chairman of the Board of the Company has confirmed to the Board
on 12th July 2007 that he will voluntarily retire from his directorship
at forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company at least once
every three years in order for the Company to comply with the Code,
provide that being eligible for re-election, he may offer himself for re-
election at the annual general meeting.

The name of the Directors who served during the year are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts’ set out on
page 14 of this annual report. There was no change of directors during
the year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board set up the Remuneration Committee on 15th July 2005
with specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its
authority and duties. The Remuneration Committee’s role is to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
for Directors and senior management and to ensure that they are
fairly rewarded for their individual contribution to the Group’s overall
performance, having regard to the interests of shareholders. The
principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include determining
the specific remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management as well as reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PREIWS

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Eav Yin and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat
Cheung, Vincent. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Eav
Yin.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting to
advise the Board on the Group’s overall policy and structure of the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. No Director or
any of his/her associates may be involved in any decisions as to his/her
own remuneration. Based on the review and discussion at the meeting,
the Remuneration Committee recommended to the Board to approve
the Group’s overall policy and structure of the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st March 2010, the total remuneration of the
Company’s auditor for statutory audit services and other services is
HK$975,000 (2009: HK$845,000) and HK$258,000 (2009: HK$250,000)
respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Audit Committee in 1st January 1999 with specific
written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority and
duties. The Audit Committee’s role is to review the Group’s financial
reporting, internal controls and corporate governance issues and to
make relevant recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue,
Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent. The Audit Committee is
chaired by Mr. Lai Si Ming.

Under its terms of reference, which were prepared and adopted with
reference to the Code and “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Audit Committee is required, among other things,
to oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of internal control of the Group, to review accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group, to engage independent
legal or other advisors as it determines is necessary and to perform
investigations.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year to review,
among other things, the interim and annual financial statements. Based
on the review and discussion at the meetings, the Audit Committee
recommended to the Board, among other things, to approve the interim
and annual financial statements of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements where were prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. A statement by
the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set out on pages
26 to 27 of this annual report. As far as the Board is aware, there are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Board, with the establishment of internal audit
department, had reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal
control of the Group including material controls over financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.

In addition, the Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they
can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These
include general meetings, interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Procedure for voting by poll has been read out by the
chairman at the general meetings.

At the 2009 annual general meeting, a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman in respect of each separate issue, including
re-election of Directors, and voted by way of poll. The Company
announced the results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the
Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

L% SENER S

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA COMMERCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia
Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 28
to 102, which comprise the consolidated and Company statements of
financial position as at 31st March 2010 and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting principles and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26th July 2010

Alvin Yeung Sik Hung
Practising Certificate Number P05206
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

meBEE

For the year ended 31st March 2010 #HZE—-ZT—ZF=A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-ZfF —ZZTTNEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
Turnover EEX 5 777,464 618,813
Cost of sales Fi=R= ' (532,472) (389,520)
Gross profit EF 244,992 229,293
Valuation gains/(losses) on investment BEMEZ HEKE (BE)
properties 9,550 (4,500)
Other revenue H Az 5 20,285 17,780
Distribution costs o $EAK AR (182,591) (169,750)
Administrative expenses 1TEE A (37,285) (31,677)
Other operating expenses, net HMEEER  F58 (54) (1)
Profit from operations F<E=—in 54,897 41,145
Finance costs B 7% A 7R 7(a) (75) (25)
Other income, net HEaUg A - FER 8 2,012 1,590
Profit before taxation B B4 A 5 A 7 56,834 42,710
Income tax Frig®t 10 (5,603) (3,019)
Profit for the year REERR 51,231 39,691
Attributable to owners of the Company FEREQAFEA 51,231 39,691
Earnings per share BRER 13
Basic (HK cents) B (L) 8.53 6.61
Diluted (HK cents) #E (B 8.53 6.61

The notes on pages 34 to 102 form part of these financial statements.

Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to

profit for the year are set out in note 12.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERBNER

BE-_ZT—ZTF=A=1+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31st March 2010

2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Profit for the year AEEER 51,231 39,691
Other comprehensive income for the year AXEEHM2HEKE
Exchange differences on translation of REGIN B R R R R
financial statements of overseas EEZERERE
subsidiaries 5,510 (5,234)
Changes in revaluation reserve on MESHZEHFHE
revaluation of properties (3,787) 1,858
Total other comprehensive income AFEFEHMAEERE (OBRHE)
for the year (net of tax) 1,723 (3,376)
Total comprehensive income for the year EEEFBRELABEA
attributable to owners of the Company HErEmRE 52,954 36,315

The notes on pages 34 to 102 form part of these financial statements. EIMBEEE1028 2 s B BT IS iR 2 B2 h
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MIFIRIRR

As at 31st March 2010 R=-ZT—ZTF=A=+—H

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE Y 14 25,329 33,312
Prepaid lease payments HEEMNREA 15 3,987 4,274
Investment properties B 16 70,185 56,285
Available-for-sale investments AEHEZRE 19 4,192 2,180
103,693 96,051
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 291,139 274,681
Prepaid lease payments HEEMNRE 15 62 67
Trade and other receivables %%&ﬁ@ﬁ”ﬂlﬁ%ﬁ 21 59,767 41,457
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREEED 22 65,690 49,571
416,658 365,776
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNERER 23 105,198 98,798
Income tax payable FEBPTISH 24a 752 281
Loan notes BERER 25 - 2,898
105,950 101,977
Net current assets RBEEFE 310,708 263,799
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERABARG 414,401 359,850
Non-current liabilities FEREAE
Rental received in advance Bl e 2,343 2,418
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEEE 24b 7,679 -
10,022 2,418
Net assets EETFE 404,379 357,432
Equity s
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZBRAQFAZFEAZER
Share capital A 26 60,070 60,070
Reserves H 28 344,309 297,362
Total equity R 404,379 357,432

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th July 2010 and signed on its behalf by:

REZE-TFLA-_TAAREZSBBLEENE  Xh T MIEEARE

Au Shiu Leung, Alex

The notes on pages 34 to 102 form part of these financial statements.

Eav Ming Keong, Kinson
BHE
Director
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RSN TR

R-Z—ZTHF=H=+—H As at 31st March 2010

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries LN A - £ 17 - -
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables Hoth JE YL AR 5K 21 116 123
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W B 8 1 R SR IR 18 277,030 283,373
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEYD 22 11,383 410
288,529 283,906
Current liabilities REBE
Other payables H b FE R SK 23 2,614 2,410
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAHBY B A R A 80 141
Loan notes BERER 25 - 2,898
2,694 5,449
Net current assets RBEEFE 285,835 278,457
Net assets BEEFH 285,835 278,457
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners of the parent FEBERBATEEAZER
Share capital RN 26 60,070 60,070
Reserves G 28 225,765 218,387
Total equity R 285,835 278,457

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th July 2010 and signed on its behalf by:
RECZE-—ZFLA-TAAEEZSRBLEENE YA TIEERRES

Au Shiu Leung, Alex

The notes on pages 34 to 102 form part of these financial statements.

BER
Director
EZE

Eav Ming Keong, Kinson
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEE

anl'I:Iili

For the year ended 31st March 2010 #HZE_-ZF—

ZE=ZA=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRRADABEA
Share Share Revaluation  Exchange Capital Contributed Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve surplus losses Total
Rx  RGEE  EftRE  EXRE  EXRE  4AER  REREE L]
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET AT TET FET
Balance at 1st April 2008 RZZZ\ERA-BEH 60,070 77,991 31,562 16,359 252,381 17,524 (128,763) 327,124
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year RERRT - - - - - - 39,691 39,691
Other comprehensive income A2 ENE
Exchange differences on BESMHBLANBRREEL
translation of financial EHES
statements of overseas
subsidiaries - - - (5,234) - - - (5,234)
Change in revaluation reserve NEEHCERRERS
on revaluation of properties - - 1,858 - - - - 1,858
Total comprehensive income for ~ AEE B2 A
the year - - 1,858 (5,234) - - 39,691 36,315
Transaction with owners HBEEALRS
Dividend paid (Note 12) BARE (Hitr2) - - - - - - (6,007) (6,007)
Balance at 31st March 2009 RZSENE=A=+-BEH 60,070 77,991 33,420 11,125 252,381 17,524 (95,079) 357,432
Balance at 1st April 2009 RZZENERA-BEH 60,070 77,991 33,420 11,125 252,381 17,524 (95,079) 357,432
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year FEERF - - - - - - 51,231 51,231
Other comprehensive income £ 2ENR
Exchange differences on REBIMMBLAMBRRES
translation of financial JEXEE
statements of overseas
subsidiaries - - - 5,510 - - - 5,510
Change in revaluation reserve NEEHCERERS
on revaluation of properties - - (3,787) - - - - (3,787)
Total comprehensive income for ~ AEE B2 AU
the year - - (3,787) 5,510 - - 51,231 52,954
Transaction with owners BEEALRS
Dividend paid (Note 12) BRRE W) - - - - - - (6,007) (6,007)
Balance at 31st March 2010 R-5-FF=A=+-BiH 60,070 77,991 29,633 16,635 252,381 17,524 (49,855) 404,379
The notes on pages 34 to 102 form part of these financial statements. FI4EEF1028 2 [T L BT 1S i3k~ BB ER1D



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REMERER

BE-_ZT—ZTF=A=1+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31st March 2010

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ E4x/ (BR)RECER
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES BeTHE 29 32,611 (13,247)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEK
Purchases of properties, REWE HEE R
plant and equipment B3 (7,927) (24,545)
Interest received from short-term B R EIRTTE R
bank deposits F & - 23
Other interest income received B Uk E A B A 127 251
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING EEBARKREEKZ
ACTIVITIES BeFHE (7,800) (24,271)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEES
Interest paid on the loan notes and others BEXRERREMIANZFE (78) (25)
Redemption of loan notes BREREE (2,885) -
Dividend paid EIEE (6,007) (6,007)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING BARMETES 2
ACTIVITIES REFE (8,970) (6,032)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReERBESEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #in (R FHE 15,841 (43,550)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT ENBRERREEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 49,571 94,496
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES ON CASH AND ReERBEESEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS ERER 278 (1,375)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT THE FRAESLREEEY
END OF THE YEAR 65,690 49,571
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH ReRALEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EERDAT
Cash at bank and on hand ROGEREFERS 22 65,690 49,571

The notes on pages 34 to 102 form part of these financial statements. FIEER
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GENERAL

Asia Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in trading and retailing of watches and property leasing.

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information to the annual report.

These financial statements are presented in thousand of units
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26th July 2010.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of buildings, available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss and
investment properties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

In the current year, the Group has, where applicable, applied

the following new and revised Standards, Amendments and

Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are

first effective for the current accounting period:

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 8
HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 32 & HKAS 1
(Amendments)

HK(FRIC)-Int 9 & HKAS 39

(Amendments)

HK(FRIC)-Int 13

HK(FRIC)-Int 15

HK(FRIC)-Int 16

HK(FRIC)-Int 18

Presentation of Financial Statements

Borrowing Costs

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments

Operating Segments

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2008, except for the amendment to
HKFRS 5 which is effective for annual
periods beginning or after 1 July 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009
in relation to the amendment to
paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

Puttable Financial Instruments and

Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction of

Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

Except as described below, the adoption of the new
and revised HKFRSs has had no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current or prior accounting periods.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 with effect from 1st April
2009. HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified
on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operation
decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segment
and assess its performance. In contrast, the predecessor
Standard (HKAS 14) required an entity to identify two sets
of segments (business and geographical), using a risks
and rewards approach, with the entity’s “system of internal
financial reporting to key management personnel” serving
only as starting point for the identification of such segments.
The application of HKFRS 8 has resulted in a redesignation
of the Group’s reportable segments as compared with the
primary reportable segments determined in accordance with
HKAS 14.

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007),
details of changes in equity during the period arising from
transactions with equity shareholders in their capacity as
such have been presented separately from all other income
and expenses in a revised consolidated statement of
changes in equity. All other items of income and expense
are presented in the consolidated income statement, if
they are recognised as part of profit or loss for the period,
or otherwise in a new primary statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Corresponding
amounts have been restated to conform to the new
presentation. This change in presentation has no effect on
reported profit or loss, total income and expense or net
assets for any period presented.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2010 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see Note 2(g)), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale.

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in
equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at cost,
which is their transaction price unless fair value can be
more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose
variables include only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except
where indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

Investments in equity securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out
in Note 2(0).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a listed
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are recognised in the statement of
financial position at cost less impairment losses (see note
2(9))-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Other investments in equity securities (Continued)

Other investments in equity securities which are not held for
trading are classified as available-for-sale equity securities.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
directly in equity. Dividend income from these investments is
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set
out in Note 2(o). When these investments are derecognised
or impaired (see Note 2(g)), the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit
or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/sell the
investments or when they expire.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see Note 2(f)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of
financial position at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from
a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in Note 2(0).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
Note 2(f)), and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties
held under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for
as described in Note 2(f).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

f

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note

2(g)):

- buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of lease (see Note 2(f));

- freehold land; and

- other items of plant and equipment.

If an item of property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount
and the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is
recognised in revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will
be transferred directly to retained profits.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve
to retained profits.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

R §5 ER R B 5F

2. XESFECR (8)

(e)

f

Hithta % - a3 RRMHE

THIME - #es aRE 2R B TR A ER
R ERBEEERBBERIRP 27
(RHE2(9)) -

- WUREErTHBEEERZET R
EEAR (RETE2()  BFZ22AA
BEREEET s AR ESHAE

- ERELiu R
- HbEIB/RREEAR -

fW—EMEREARREE (I ABHEE
BR) M ARENME  MZABKREMER
REERASMZARBEZEZEREMRHEDHE
R - EREREELEXZAR > EHE
HREEHEEREREREER -

WERHEME BERRBEREMELZ
REEEALEMSRBFHEEERREE
Mo 28 YHRMEXHERE ANIBR AR
R EAEBELRSKEEHREERER

B A o

HEEE

1 7 £ R SE T2 16 7 B A 7 8 5 SE B E £
BEBBUBR -SSR ESFRAZLE &
B—BERXSGA—ERRXFIZARFER K
BE—AEE ZBEREDNERRFARTZ
BHEFAEMEL  MARZALTHEEEERR
BEZERPN -

() AEBEHEZEZDH

HRAEBENEESTABAEZEE -
WEEEEERZBRBY AR A
BoEBEAEE ARACEEFES
DEANBERERE  NHEETE
VA 2 BB D B A B 3R
EAKE - D BAKEHE - EHH
BT



Annual Report 2010 4¢3

40|41

Asia Commercial Holdings Limited 5 i i 25 4 B A 4 ]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f

Leased assets (Continued)

(i

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group (Continued)

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
an investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see Note 2(d)); and

- land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included
in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost or valuation of the assets over the
term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the
Company or Group will obtain ownership of the asset,
the life of the asset, as set out in Note 2(e). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in Note 2(g). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged
to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Leased assets (Continued)

(ifi)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are written off as
an expense of the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property (see Note 2(d)).

(g) Impairment of assets

(i

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables

Investments in equity securities (other than investments
in subsidiaries and associates (see Note 2(g)(ii)) and
other current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale equity securities are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtors;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For unlisted equity securities carried at cost,
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities
are not reversed.

For trade receivables and other financial assets
carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERR B EE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TESIKE (@)

(9) Impairment of assets (Continued) (9) B (58)

BB 5 R E R A JE Y AR 5B (E

(i)  Impairment of investments in equity securities and other (i)

receivables (Continued)

- For available-for-sale equity securities, which are
stated at fair value when a decline in the fair value
has been recognised directly in equity and there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
the cumulative loss that has been recognised
directly in equity shall be removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss even though the
financial asset has not been derecognised. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised directly in equity.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- prepaid lease payments; and

- investments in subsidiaries (except for those
classified as being held for sale).

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash generating units
(or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in
use, if determinable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, “Interim financial reporting”,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
note 2(g)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at
the end of the financial year to which the interim period
relates.

R §5 ER R B 5F

2. XESFECR ()

() &&=

(i)

(i)

A (&)
H it B E 5 E ()
-  RBOoRESE

HHEBEUINZEE  ERNE
ERRE Rz HARRELR
MES  REBESTED B
EEEZREBE S TED -

BEZREBEABRRILERB
EFEERIAMEBEMEDEE
ZEERHEERR - BEZHEE
BIENERBER ZFEARNAR

5o

o BB 75 A R R

REEBBEXIMERRABTFES L
MRA AEBABREBESTER
AT MM B IRE | REEHE K
FEENEAZGHPBERS - RH
HHR AEERBERAMBREE
RZBEAH BB RBEERE(R
HIEE2(g)) °

R AR ABARZEE
AHEERAESRERIFELTES
REWBZREBRRENT —HE
Bl - Rk A M R Z A AR
% R AR T A S R
REE - BB - ERAALAE
FERIRTTE



Annual Report 2010 4¢3

o
[
~
~

Asia Commercial Holdings Limited 5 i i 25 4 B A 4 ]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

U]

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis and
comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and
other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an
increase in net realisable value is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the statement of financial position when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are
set out below.

2. XESFECR ()

(h)

U]

1
aQ

17 B PARKAR J ] 8 30 5B 2 BUE & IR © BX
RIAFG LT EFERBEAARBAA -
R A REEXFEEE B AT 23 MR
FRTEI Bz M -

AERFERLEREEFBRET A EERMG
FHTERAR AR R A RT S E AR

REEFER  IWEFEZREENNIERE
WATER 2 MR B - ERFEHR
EMREFENTEFEEERESR R
EEELHRER AR - mRA#3HFE
ENEHEFEMR < EAED 2 SBIRE
EHFEBOYEFERAZHXSRAMR
A—IRHA, °

I8

BEEERARASTAANBGIXZATNTE
AR BRARANEREREERERA
F-2REEREBAGERVNARIABA
R-ERETEREERERAGBCES
BHRRAAREREZEHEENSBBER
SN BEREIE 2 R BRA - SRR )2 TR
BERMEENEBRABZAABEAIR -

BRBRHERANEREZEREENSRA
BEEEEE 2R F KA T AR 8 &5 A E

oM

EHEE

AEEZEREERBRBERBRERAAE
RIEZERERE - BRREUIRUA R #
HEZEREE - MBENALEBESTABA
ZERMEEYRR A EEERNK ILHE
R ERBERHENRART ISR ERE
PIREZHHBEAXN ZEREEESR - 3
BReREEMRABZEABERNENT -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held-for-trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At the end of each reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, loan receivables
and bank deposits) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see Note 2(g)(i)).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets and are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. At the end of each reporting period, the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised directly in equity, except for impairment losses.
When these financial assets are derecognised or impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly in
equity is recognised in the profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity financial assets, an impairment
loss is not reversed through the income statement. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognised directly in equity.

For available-for-sale debt financial assets, reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including borrowings, other payables
and balances with group companies are initially recognised
at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or,
the financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

For financial liabilities, they are removed from the Group’s
statement of financial position when, and only when, it
is extinguished (i.e. when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires). The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid or payable
is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

(K

U]

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present value.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group as a parent is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or
loss, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt
with in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of the debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with Note 2(n)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

2.

(n)

(o)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

(i) Other provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and cost, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as
follow:

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and
the customer has accepted the goods and related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and after deducting of any trade discounts.

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when
services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’
established.

rights to receive payment have been
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position item is translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised directly in a separate component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences recognised in equity which relate
to that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in making
financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(i) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture
in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

U]

Related parties (Continued)

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may by aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In preparing these financial statements, management is required
to exercise significant judgments in the selection and application
of accounting principles, including making estimates and
assumptions. The following is a review of the more significant
accounting policies that are impacted by judgments and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported
under a different set of conditions or using different assumptions.

(i) Write downs of inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write
downs on inventories are recorded where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
realised. The identification of write downs requires the use of
judgments and estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and write downs of inventories
in the periods in which such estimate has been changed.

(ii) Impairment loss on trade receivables and other
receivables

The policy for impairment losses is based on an assessment
of the recoverability of trade receivable and other receivables
and interest in subsidiaries. Impairments are applied to trade
receivables and other receivables and interest in subsidiaries
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may be uncollectible. The identification of
impairment loss requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from original estimates,
such difference will impact the carrying value of receivables
and impairment loss expenses in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group estimates its income tax provision in accordance
with the prevailing tax rules and regulations, taking into
account any special approvals obtained from relevant tax
authorities and any preferential tax treatment to which it is
entitled in each location or jurisdiction in which the Group
operates. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination in uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

The Group believes it has recorded adequate current tax
provision based on the prevailing tax rules and regulations
and its current best estimates and assumptions. In the event
that future tax rules and regulations or related circumstances
change, adjustments to current taxation may be necessary
which would impact the Group’s results or financial position.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
valuation performed by independent professional valuers.
The determination of the fair value involves certain
assumptions of market conditions. In relying on the valuation
report, the directors of the Company have exercised their
judgment and are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including foreign

currency risk and interest rate risk). These risks are limited
by the Group’s financial management policies and practices
described below.

(i)

(i)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and the Group’s
credit risk is primarily to cash at banks, bank deposits,
trade receivables and other receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash at banks and bank deposits are placed with
licensed financial institutions with high credit ratings.
The Group monitors the exposure to each single
financial institution.

For trade receivables and other receivables, credit
checks are part of the normal operating process and
stringent monitoring procedures are in place to deal
with overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amounts of trade receivables and other
receivables at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. The maximum exposure
to credit risk without taking account of any collateral
held is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the statement of financial position
after deducting any impairment allowance.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
and other receivables are set out in Note 21.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

4,

1 ¥ IR E IR (4])

(a) MHEEBREE(E)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) IEBEzEE (&)
The following table details the remaining contractual THRAFAGEFRGHABENRESR
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the RZBRTEHNIHA (BELREHR
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on NEBMEFHEZFNBWES - R
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest EHRZFEFERTBERESRE) X
payments computed using contractual rates or, if REBEEARRF R EYfRz&R
floating, based on rates current at the end of the AERETH -
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and
the Company can be required to pay:
The Group rEH
2010
—E-EF
Total Within
contractual 1 year
undiscounted or on
Carrying cash flow demand
amount EHRITE R—FR
IREE REREBALE HRER
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FETT FET
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMERNRER 105,198 105,198 105,198
Loan notes ERER - - -
105,198 105,198 105,198
2009
—EThEF
Total Within
contractual 1 year
undiscounted or on
Carrying cash flow demand
amount ARKRITHE R—FR
REE BRen=#%E RIRE K
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET FET
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMEMRR 98,798 98,798 98,798
Loan notes ERER 2,898 2,925 2,925
101,696 101,723 101,723




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 ¥R 2R Bt 51
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. BIEEEIRESIR (48)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MHERMEBERE ()
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) wREEzEE(E)
The Company PN
2010
—E-FF
Total Within
contractual 1 year
undiscounted or on
Carrying cash flow demand
amount BHRITH R—FR
BREE REeEREHEE RIRER
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Other payables E A ETER R 2,614 2,614 2,614
Amounts due to subsidiaries eI B A RIFIE 80 80 80
2,694 2,694 2,694
2009
—EENF
Total Within
contractual 1 year
undiscounted or on
Carrying cash flow demand
amount BHIRITHE R—FRA
AREE RENSHEE FIRE K
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
Other payables H b e BR3K 2,410 2,410 2,410
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERIBI B A Rk 141 141 141
Loan notes BERER 2,898 2,925 2,925
5,449 5,476 5,476
(iii)  Foreign currency risk (i) S EE f
Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the IR B 0 )8 A INEE B S R BUR o
foreign exposure.
The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group operate in REBARKHEMMBARIEREAREHK
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with most ME (AR EEER  KZEHERH
of transactions denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”). The NARE(TARB] EE ASKEE
Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from AR & T ZINER S o

the exposure of RMB against the Hong Kong dollars.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. NEEBSIP (8)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MHERMEBERE ()
(i)  Foreign currency risk (Continued) (iii)  SNMEE (B
The Group had certain investments in foreign AEBBEBEETUARBEEZEH
operations in RMB, whose net assets were exposed EKRE  HEEFEEYINERR -
to foreign currency risk. Fluctuation in such currency BHEAEE 2 EE K &R AE X
would be reflected in the movement of the exchange B2 E -
reserve.
In addition, the conversion of RMB into foreign BN - AR A INE BB <F R
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of BT ET I8 2 SNE B4 38 Bl OR8] ©
the foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.
The following table details the Group’s and the TR AEE AR RERS R
Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting period KRERFIAEEEE AN E K E
to currency risk arising from recognised assets or ZIHBEEHREENEBE  FIREZ
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the BERRE -
functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
2010 2009
—E-ZfF —ZTTNhEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
The Group EEH
Cash and cash equivalents RekBE2EED
Renminbi AR 40 112
Overall exposure arising from REMREENRBEZ
recognised assets and liabilities G RIE 40 112
The Company NN
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY
Renminbi AR - -
Overall exposure arising from KEBRBREERARZ
recognised assets and liabilities BEERE - -
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) in
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period.

TRIIFREE AR - AEBER %
HH (RRBAF) HAREE 2 INE
B 5 0 ABE 2 1L -



4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B §5 ¥R R B 5F

4. UHKERREIR ()

Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MIHERMEBEE (&)
(iiij)  Foreign Currency risk (Continued) (iii)  SNE [E G ()
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRE DT (88)
The Group KEH
2010 2009
—z-%% —EThE
Effect on Effect on
Increase/  profit after Increase/ profit after
(decrease) tax and (decrease) tax and
in foreign retained in foreign retained
exchange profits exchange profits
rates BRBERRE rates  BRERARB
INEE X A B SNEE R & 1% #
#gm,/ (h) wmAEE 2, CRD) B N8
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Renminbi AR 4 10% 11
4 10% 11
The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming DT TR BR SN BE 3 1) (b B

(iv)

that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency
risk for financial instruments in existence at that date,
and that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next annual
end of the reporting period. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong Kong
dollar and the United States dollar would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in value of
the United States dollar against other currencies. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates and the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for cash and cash equivalents details of
which have been disclosed in Note 22.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to fixed-rate loan notes which details have been
disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements. The
Group will continue to review the market trend, as
well as its business operation needs and its financial
position in order to identify the most effective tools for
interest risk management.

(iv)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

4.

(b)

(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher level
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes loan notes
and other financial liabilities) less bank deposits and cash.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity less
unaccrued proposed dividends.

During the year ended 31st March 2010, the Group’s
strategy, which remains unchanged from 2009, was to
maintain the net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio as low as
feasible. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt. As at 31st March 2010 and 2009, the
Group did not have net debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

Fair value

trade
receivables, other receivables, deposits and prepayments,
trade payables, other payables and accrued charges are
not materially different from their carrying amounts because

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents,

of the immediate or short term maturity of these financial
instruments.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and other receivables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair value. The fair value of financial
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4.
(d) Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of
financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of the

reporting period, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which the fair value is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value

measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined on

the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement in its entirety.

The Group
rEE
Level1 Level2 Level3
B8R %R H=R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
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o F IR E IR (4])

(d)

BRRMBRRNEPZAREBTE

TREH®T —ERARSHRARREE
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fii» BREEANEELER  TRER
AEEDSEE(TIBERNEA) -

ZRARERBREBANRR - BAD R
ZRnERE DIRBUBRAAEFES
EZUEMRERRBRAMRE

The Company
KAF

Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
HmE E-H BF-HR  E=ZR Fokc]

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET TET  FTErT THErT FET FET  FET

Financial assets at ZERBERMN

fair value through »RESER

profit or loss ZERMEE
Derivative financial TESR

assets BE - - - - - - - -
Non-derivative BEEEERR

financial assets ZIEITHE

held for trading TREE 4,192 - - 4,192 - - - -
Total B 4,192 - - 4,192 - - - -

There were no significant transfers between instruments in
Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

FRAE-BERE-_RZTALTEEREE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

5. TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE 5. EEfIRHfhUE

Turnover represents the gross proceeds received and receivable CEBAEREERDELHA 2B R EER 22
derived from the sale of watches and property leasing and is T REBEWOT

summarised as follows:
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2010 2009
—E-2F —ETENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Turnover B
Sales of watches EIRIHE 774,644 615,735
Gross rental income from properties REWMEZHEERA 2,820 3,078
777,464 618,813
Other revenue E b
Interest income from short-term bank deposits HHRITEFERAERKA - 23
Other interest income HAaF B U A 127 251
Total interest income on financial assets FBBIEBRE AL EREN
not at fair value through profit or loss TREEMELEMNTE
WA %R 127 274
Customer services income and others BRREBAREAm 20,158 17,506
20,285 17,780
797,749 636,593

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 with effect from 1st April 2009.
HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the chief operation decision maker
in order to allocate resources to the segment and assess its
performance. In contrast, the predecessor Standard (HKAS 14)
required an entity to identify two sets of segments (business
and geographical), using a risks and rewards approach, with the
entity’s “system of internal financial reporting to key management
personnel” serving only as starting point for the identification of
such segments. The application of HKFRS 8 has resulted in a
redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments as compared
with the primary reportable segments determined in accordance
with HKAS 14.

In the past, the Group’s primary reporting segment was business
segments: (i) sale of watches and (ii) others (mainly comprises
properties leasing). However, for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of performance, the directors of the
Group, are more focused on sale of watches and properties
leasing segment which are also the Group’s reportable segments
under HKFRS 8.

NEWRS

FAEBB_TTNFOA—HREHEMNBTENE
MEERIZESS - BV B MERERIE8HR BRI
BREBEAREEIPEEARTOBRABER
fﬁtfﬁim@%ﬁ@iﬁfazﬁﬁlzﬁﬁ%*gf 2 N EB R

ERBAEED R EE REBTER(FH

EEHERE1458) A ELEEHARR &@#ﬁ
fo%ﬁ%%]ﬁﬁzﬁ’\*g(%W’\*B&ﬁﬂlﬂ:ﬂ/\*ﬂ)
®A }E‘EﬁgﬁEEEE/\EEEW*BW?%#&%Z%U
EERBANZES ML - BIRBEB G A
ﬂ']%14?ﬁﬁ§$2£¥#ﬁ%%ﬁ“ﬁtb B A
BRMEENESHFOERAEB s REDHWHE
BT -

BE AEEZIEREDBEREEDE : ()E
BHEERMNEM(EERENEEE) - T8 &
REREERKRAFGEZEN  AEEEE &
HRETEEREELDEREN R WHAE
B BHMEEAESRT  AEREZARENE -
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. SHEIBE ()
Information regarding the above segments is presented below. BRSO HEERZHMT - BESFEEME
Amounts reported for the prior period have been restated to MELRFESHR 2Bk BAHBE 2 EBEE
conform to the requirement of HKFRS 8. Rl
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, assets UTALRBFARNEESESE 2 EERS %
and liabilities by operating segment for the years under review: s EBEENBEBZON:
2010
—B-%f
Unallocated
Sale of Properties Segmental (Note)
watches leasing total REDE Total
EHHEE HENE PEME (Hiz) @5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
External revenue HiME 774,644 2,820 777,464 - 777,464
Turnover EEE 774,644 2,820 777,464 - 777,464
Operating profit eyl 58,403 1,432 59,835 (14,615) 45,220
Valuation gains on REMEZHE
investment properties U 2% - 9,550 9,550 - 9,550
Interest income FEHA 127 - 127 - 127
Other Income, net HiA 358 - - - 2,012 2,012
Finance costs BB (53) - (53) (22) (75)
Segment results NEEE 58,477 10,982 69,459 (12,625) 56,834
Income tax Higsh (5,603)
Profit for the year AEERF 51,231
Depreciation and amortisation TEREE 15,673 470 16,143 103 16,246
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Bt 5 SRR Bt 5
6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. S EEIRE (&)
2010
—2-Ef
Unallocated
Sale of Properties Segmental (Note)
watches leasing total REPE Total
EHRHEE HEME PEMET (Hiz) @t
HK$’°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FE7 FET FE7
Segment assets SEEE 425,144 79,234 504,378 11,781 516,159
Available-for-sale investments AELEZRE - - - 4,192 4,192
Total assets BmEE 425,144 79,234 504,378 15,973 520,351
Additions to non-current segment KEEFRBNE
assets during the year BEZEM 7,927 - 7,927 - 7,927
Segment liabilities NEEEE 99,827 11,757 111,584 3,636 115,220
Income tax payable JER PRI 752 - 752 - 752
-3
lﬂ.
g Total liabilities BaRE 100,579 11,757 112,336 3,636 115,972
[aV)
T
ag,- Note: Unallocated items mainly include (i) finance cost and corporate costs Bt REDBIEB ETBEIE () BRA KB ERKAR
% which cannot be meaningfully allocated to individual segment; and (ii) EReEZHZ o EEB I E  RH)EEX
é assets and liabilities that are not directly attributable to any reportable BEERGEEEBNEMAIRESE -
< segment.
6667 2009
—TTNE
- Unallocated
§ Sale of Properties Segmental (Note)
& watches leasing total REDE Total
{% HEIRIEE HEME HEREE (hiiz) it
% HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Eié FET FET FET FET FET
g
E External revenue MR 615,735 3,078 618,813 - 618,813
é
% Turnover EEE 615,735 3,078 618,813 - 618,813
I
<
E Operating profit G 58,142 1,371 59,513 (14,142) 45,371
£
38 Valuation losses on BENMEZ (A
ﬁ investment properties B8 - (4,500) (4,500) - (4,500)
Interest income FlSWA 250 - 250 24 274
Other income /(expenses), net Ht A/ (BA) 58 (1,305) - (1,305) 2,895 1,590
Finance costs BHAAR - - - (25) (25)
Segment results DREEE 57,087 (3,129) 53,958 (11,248) 42,710
Income tax FEH (3,019)
Profit for the year KEEHR 39,691

Depreciation and amortisation WER#BH 13,822 501 14,323 47 14,370
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. SYHEIBE (@)
2009
—ETNF
Unallocated
Sale of Properties Segmental (Note)
watches leasing total RENE Total
HERIEE HENE HEREE (Hi:z) et
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET FET FHET FET
Segment assets NEEE 391,777 66,856 458,633 1,014 459,647
Available-for-sale investments AHEEEZRE - - - 2,180 2,180
Total assets BEE 391,777 66,856 458,633 3,194 461,827
Additions to non-current segment AERERBNE
assets during the year BEZEM 22,788 1,757 24,545 - 24,545
Segment liabilities SERME 93,688 4,433 98,121 5,993 104,114
Income tax payable JERI PG 281 - 281 - 281
Total liabilities gafkE 93,969 4,433 98,402 5,993 104,395
Note: Unallocated items mainly include (i) finance income, finance cost and Mt REHEBEEHETZBE : (VM HEA - BHKAR

corporate costs which cannot be meaningfully allocated to individual
segment; and (ii) assets and liabilities that are not directly attributable
to any reportable segment.

REERAETEARBEZNDREB LN
RVEERABEREEXRBREMATRED

o

@
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. NS (E)

Geographic Information EzswEaER

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the T ROANEE KRG HINBE P RN EE
group’s revenue from external customers and (ii) the group’s non- CIERBEEZREME DN - BEKL IR
current assets. The geographical location of customers refers to EZERHERBEEWEZX 2 HE  KEBEERE
the location at which the services were provided or the goods BEDEDE HERZH HEBNKE &
delivered. The Group’s non-current assets include property, plant EMERATEHEE RS - KEME 2 IERBE
and equipment, prepaid lease payments, investment properties ErEREEZERMEEZE -

and available-for-sale investments. The geographical locations of
non-current assets are based on the physical location of the asset
under consideration.

Revenues from

external customers Non-current assets
REMNBEF 2Kz FRBEE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-ZF —"ZTNE ZB-BF "—TZNF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
The People’s Republic of P AREME -

China, excluding Hong Kong L 646,530 520,569 20,579 24,753
Hong Kong (place of domicile) 55 (REH) 130,117 97,358 61,507 51,240
Switzerland i 198 405 21,607 20,058
Others* E b 619 481 - -

777,464 618,813 103,693 96,051
* Other included U.S.A. * EthBEEE
Information about major customers BARIEFEZPFER
During the year, none of the Group’s revenue was derived from RERXN AEBVETAREBEININLEE IR
transactions with individual external customers that amounted to SN EexmEgiBaA~EE10% 2 Kz o
10 per cent or more of the Group’s revenue.
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7. Wil A i R
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BB ADEMNENE, GEA) L T&IE :
(a) Finance costs (a) B FERY R
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZTERE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Interest on loan notes BERREF L 22 25
Others Eﬁﬁ 53 -
Total interest expense on financial FBERBRBRANBERENSR
liabilities not at fair value through BEMEENTE LESE

profit or loss 75 25
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 7. IRFEINE (@)
(b) Staff costs (b) BIRK
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZTTNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe IERHEMBER

(including directors’ fee and emoluments (PiEEEwRe kM e (#7:79))

(Note 9)) 69,620 67,408
Retirement benefits scheme contribution,  EBAREFIFFEERE MR Z

net of forfeited contribution of HK$Nil HEREBTL(ZZEZTNE : TBT)

(2009: HK$N:II) 389 408

70,009 67,816
(c) Other items (c) RfbAB
2010 2009
—E—EF —ZTENEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Rental receivable from investment EEMERRKESHNBRERES D

properties less direct outgoings of 209,000 T (ZETNF -

HK$209,000 (2009: HK$146,000) 146,0007% 7t) (2,557) (2,887)
Net exchange loss (N BiaFE 2,005 459
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN &

Audit services ZE R 975 845

Other services H fth JR 75 258 250
Depreciation e 16,179 14,299
Amortisation for prepaid lease payments & T8 R IE 8 67 71
Bad debts written off AR = 1
Reversal of write-down of inventories* B LR 2 FE” (23,948) (17,209)
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEMEZKEHERS -

rented premises: Minimum lease REHERIE

payments 81,230 69,272
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R AER 2 FEK A 532,472 389,520

* The reversal of write-down of inventories made for the year
arose due to the sale of the obsolete stock during the year
ended 31st March 2010. The selling price of the obsolete stock
is greater than the estimated net realisable value in previous
years. Therefore, write back of inventories HK$23,948,000 was
made during the year (2009: HK$17,209,000).

These amounts were included in the cost of sales.

ARBE—Z-TFE=A=+—HIL$ER
LEBETE  BWREAFEEEBEMRZ
TE -BHEEECZEERRBEFTE 2 G
AEEFE - At RAFEFEZED A
23,948,000/ 7t (Z T T J1 4 : 17,209,000
EIT) e

ZEFRB N HEMA

b
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8. OTHER INCOME, NET 8. HfhlA -5z
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Valuation gains on available-for- AHHERE 2 HEkE
sale investments 2,012 -
Write off of other payables E fth FE AT AR SO 4 - 1,521
Others HAb - 69
2,012 1,590
9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 0. ESHERESHEAL
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(i) Directors’ remuneration (i) E=EE#Me
ﬁ Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of BIEEBLATENFE161E I EZR s ES M
g the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: N
s
§ 2010
= —E-Ef
E Employer’s
contribution
70171 Allowances to retirement
and other benefit
= Directors’ Basic benefits scheme
§ fees salaries R RHKER Total
g EzHd Exge HiteH srEERTHR @t
& HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
e FAT FHT FAE FAT FAE
R (Note)
2 ()
£
[
= Executive Directors HTES
L Eav Yin B 238 1,925 3,432 - 5,595
g Eav Ming Keong, Kinson Lk 238 1,001 1,913 12 3,164
% Au Shiu Leung, Alex EER 238 2,080 309 12 2,639
8
ﬁ Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTEES
Lai Si Ming EEH 238 - - - 238
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline THET 238 - - - 238
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TEE 238 - - - 238

1,428 5,006 5,654 24 12,112




9.

U]

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 9. EEHMERESHM2AT(8)
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (i) EESBM (&)
2009
“TTNF
Employer’s
contribution
Allowances  to retirement
and other benefit
Directors’ Basic benefits scheme
fees salaries B R RINER Total
ES0d EX%¢ Highl sEEZHR Bt
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET FET FHET FAET
(Note)
(Hit)
Executive Directors BITEE
Eav Yin B 230 1,931 3,315 - 5,476
Eav Ming Keong, Kinson 158 % 230 1,004 1,653 12 2,899
Au Shiu Leung, Alex BER 230 2,083 239 12 2,564
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTEE
Lai Si Ming HEEH 230 - - - 230
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline TEF 230 - - - 230
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TEE 230 - - - 230
1,380 5,018 5,207 24 11,629
Note: During the year, the Company paid HK$2,508,000 (2009: Wit &R KRB REFEAHX2,508,0007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERR B EE

HK$2,508,000) for directors’ accommodation which is included
in allowances and other benefits.

T (ZZTNF 2,508,000/ 7T) - OERL

REMBENAFIIE -

@
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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9.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 9.
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(i)

ESHERESMEAL (F)

Individuals with highest emoluments (i) maMEAT

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2009: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in Note 9(i). The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of
the other two (2009: two) individuals are as follows:

hfisemEHFATH = (ZTEThF: =
i) B % 2 Bl © 5O M 510>) R 58 o H R’ iz
(ZZ2ZNF - W) ATFR B @M
T

2010 2009

—E-FF —ZETAEF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Basic salaries, allowances and other benefits Z£ AR F ¢ « 284 M H 185 2,808 3,115

Performance related incentive payments * IR B EhFIE 3,288 3,067
Employer’s contribution to RIREF GBI F R

retirement benefit scheme 12 12

6,108 6,194

The emoluments of the two (2009: two) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

ZMGL (ZETNE M) &EH AT 2B
ENFTINEE :

Number of individuals

AB
2010 2009
—®-®F  —TIAA
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T - 2,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T - 4,500,000/% 7T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ 7T - 5,000,000/% JT = 1
2 2
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Bt F5 R 2R BT 5
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT oS ERZHEH
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZTTNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax B R F% 18
Hong Kong aBE - -
Outside Hong Kong EFA AN & 4,343 3,019
Deferred tax IEAE R IR
Current year KEE 1,260 -
5,603 3,019

On 26th June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced the corporate profits tax
rate from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment
2008/09 onwards.

Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at a rate of 16.5%
(2009: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. No
Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided because the assessable profits
generated during the year are set off by the accumulated tax
losses brought forward from previous years.

Taxation for overseas subsidiary companies is provided at
the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant

countries.

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit in the

NZZE ZNFENRNAZ 'f'/\H %/’éi/ﬁaLL
(2008 F W AIKHIERY - EFBEHRH-_ZTZTN
ETTNRBEERE  BARRAFMEHEHERH
17.5% 8 £16.5% °

Eit - RS IR AFEE G ERE A
%Tzﬁéim 5% :;ﬁaﬁni :16. 5%)%% o AR

Fﬁ?ﬁﬁiﬁ% Eﬁllﬁz\%é ERUES %Rf’ﬁﬁj%f

BINKHTE AR 2 HIBIAR BB KR ER 2R X
G

REFERIE X HEFIIRR AR E W R RS R

consolidated income statement as follows: m
2010 2009
—E-2fF —ZTTNhF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation B 5 A1 & A 56,834 42,710
Notional tax on profit before taxation, ZIMEBRRENE @R R A EA X
calculated at the tax rates applicable to ArEBRE NG R 2 BIE
profits in the countries concerned 13,673 10,853
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ERBETEMRZ IR 2B T2 2,859 483
Tax effect of non-taxable income AR ETFRB AT B E (10,848) (13,433)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised KR Z RKFEAFEBBZHETE 7,113 4,978
Tax effect of deductible temporary REBER 2B ERER
difference not recognised 2R 1,492 138
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax losses FRAAEERACHBERCHBEE (8,686) -
Actual tax expenses BEBRHRIES T 5,603 3,019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

11. PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 11.
COMPANY

The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to the owners of
the Company includes a profit of HK$13,385,000 (2009: loss
of HK$13,476,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit/(loss)
for the year:

SBERARL

YEIFB AN, (E18)

BERARBRFEAZEE N (BB R eiE
—IHE B ANRR A %@k 213,385,0008 7T 2

Vi (—/;5

FL4E : E51813,476,00058 7T) ©

i FIERADRFR 2N, (BE) H R

2010 2009
—E-EF —ZEThEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Amount of profit/(loss) attributable to RARBMEHREREIEFE
owners dealt with in the Company’s BB AZEA, (EE)
financial statements 13,385 (13,476)
Final dividends from subsidiaries attributable FARAERREREGH B AR
to the profits of the previous financial year, ZREBRE (TYHRBEVRFE
approved and paid during the year 815 7)) = -
Company’s profit/(loss) for the year (Note 28) KRARFERNZ &R (BE) (Fi228) 13,385 (13,476)
12. DIVIDENDS 12. Ias
(a) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable (a) MERFPRATVISEABGENRRKEFEZRE

to the year

2010 2009
—E—EF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Final dividend proposed after the end HREMRERRE 2 KBRS
of the reporting period of 1.5 HK cents RSB (ZZTTNEF -
per share (2009: 1 HK cent per share) TR 9,010 6,007
At a board meeting held on 26th July 2010, the directors of R-_E—TSFL+A-_+ARTES
the Company proposed a final dividend of 1.5 HK cents per @t REERERHEE T -—TE=A

share for the year ended 31st March 2010. This proposed
dividend is not reflected as dividend payable in these
financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation
of retained earnings for the year ending 31st March 2011.

=t RAEFEZER1.5BZ RHBE -
ZRRB BT EEZEMIE MK Z BN
SRRR EEEHE—_T——F=7
=T -RALEFEZRERNANLRE -
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12. DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
to the previous year, approved and paid during the year

B §5 ¥R R B 5F

12. R (&)

(b) Eiffd AR SHFE AR A E & 88 R ik
BREREFEZRI

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNFE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Final dividend in respect of the previous FHBREEZRERE  RAFE
financial year, approved and paid during A R E AE R
the year, of 1 HK cent per share (ZZTZNF - FR1IBMW)
(2009: 1 HK cent per share) 6,007 6,007

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to the

13. BIRERH
(a) ERBRERH

FERARFREANZEREABNIRE

owners of the Company is based on the following data: A TEIRETHE -
2010 2009
—E-=fF ZTThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Profit for the year attributable to the RERELABZFME
owners of the Company for FANBEBRARBFEAEAZGF
the purpose of basic earnings per share 51,231 39,691
Number of shares
g 4=
2010 2009
—E—2F ZTTNF
Weighted average number of REA=+—HBzEBR
ordinary shares at 31st March hniE 5 8 600,695,128 600,695,128

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share equals to the basic earnings per
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares

outstanding for both years presented.

(b) SREFRN

MR 27 HAT EEEEE LB - SR
BERNBERSRERET -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. % - BBRR

(a) The Group (a) HEE
Furniture,
fixtures  Leasehold
Land and improve- Machinery
and fittings ments and Motor
Buildings buildings HE- HE  equipment Vehicles Total
BT tHREF REREE NELE  BERRE RE @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
FAT FET FET FET FET FAET FET
As at 31st March 2008 N=FZNF=A=1-H
Cost KA (E 8,967 6,095 1,505 27,972 14,244 308 59,091
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (4,599) (637) (1,108) (18,406) (10,332) (308) (35,290)
Net book value FHFE 4,368 5,558 397 9,566 3,912 - 23,801
Year ended 31st March 2009 EHZER-TTHE
A=+ -HIEFE
Opening net book value HNEEIE 4,368 5,558 397 9,566 3912 - 23,801
Translation differences BhEZE - (753) - 180 (73) - (646)
Additions NE - - 1,516 17,200 4,092 1,737 24,545
Reclassification to investment E¥ D EZRENE
properties (Note 16) (Hiz16) (89) - - - - - (89)
Depreciation charge HELH (150) (354) (242) (10,916) (2,319) (318) (14,299)
Closing net book value BRERFE 4,129 4,451 1,671 16,030 5,612 1,419 33,312
As at 31st March 2009 R-EENEZR=1-H
Cost KAE 4,855 5,250 3,022 42,936 17,556 2,045 75,664
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (726) (799) (1,351) (26,906) (11,944) (626) (42,352)
Net book value EAFE 4,129 4,451 1,671 16,030 5,612 1,419 33,312
Year ended 31st March 2010 EIR-%F
ZAZT-HLFE
Opening net book value BNREFE 4,129 4,451 1,671 16,030 5,612 1,419 33,312
Translation differences hEZES - 383 - 49 281 - 713
Additions RE - - 207 4,246 2,634 840 1,927
Reclassification to investment EH 2 EZRENE
properties (Note 16) (Hit16) (444) - - - - - (444)
Depreciation charge REXH (148) (367) (442) (12,137) (2,626) (459) (16,179)
Closing net book value HREEFE 3,537 4,467 1,436 8,188 5,901 1,800 25,329
As at 31st March 2010 RZE-TF=R=+-H
Cost KAE 4,360 5,700 3,231 40,102 20,476 2,885 76,754
Accumulated depreciation ZAE (823) (1,233) (1,795) (31,914) (14,575) (1,085) (51,425)
Net book value RHFE 3,537 4,467 1,436 8,188 5,901 1,800 25,329




14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight- (b)
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land 2% or over the remaining
terms of the leases, if shorter
Buildings 2-4%
Furniture, fixtures and fittings 15 -20%
Leasehold improvements 5-50%
Machinery and equipment 20 - 50%
Motor vehicles 20%
During the year ended 31st March 2010, certain building (c)

has been reclassified as investment properties. The
reclassification was a result of the commencement of leases
of properties.

14. W% - BBRRRE (68)

ME - BERREAE
HE -

R §5 ER R B 5F

BOERTIIFREFE

HE L 2% IR LI T FH
(ABREH B%E)

BgF 2-4%

RE REREE 15-20%

HEWMERE 5-50%

s & 2% 20 - 50%

aE 20%

RZE—ZTF=A=+
BIEEFEEFTHEA

—RALFER - ET
BREME - EFOH

TyR SR A HAEPTEL

The analysis of the net book value of land and buildings is as (d) THREFZEREMFEINOT
follows:
The Group
AEH
2010 2009
—E-Z2F —ZETAF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Buildings BF
In Hong Kong REE
Long-term leases REEE 1,122 1,215
Outside Hong Kong &S LAS
Long-term leases REHEE 2,415 2,914
3,537 4,129
Land and Buildings T REF
Outside Hong Kong BB ASN
Freehold KA FERE 4,467 4,451
8,004 8,580
At 31st March 2010, certain buildings amounting to e M-E—ZEF=-ZA=+—H - 5#TFTEE

HK$1,100,000 (2009: HK$1,192,000) were pledged as
securities for bank loans as detailed in Note 31.

1,100,000/ 7t (ZZEZE L : 1,192,000/

JU) BT RERITER
31-°

AR SN

@
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 SRR Bt 5
15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15. fAEFARIA
The Group
AEHE
2010 2009
—E-ZfF —ZETAF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Balance at 1st April RIUA—BZ &% 4,341 4,654
Reclassified to investment properties (Note 16) B D BEREW ¥ (H1:716) (225) (242)
Amortisation B5E (67) (71)
Balance at 31st March R=ZA=+T—Hz2&#% 4,049 4,341

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

AEEZHEBENRERE

The Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Long-term leases in Hong Kong REBZREPEE 1,093 1,099
Long-term land use rights in PRC R Bz KA (e A 2,956 3,242
4,049 4,341
Analysis for reporting purposes as: ERBEBNZDW
Current portion BN I 62 67
Non-current portion ERE D 3,987 4,274
4,049 4,341

(a) During the year ended 31st March 2010, some prepaid lease
payments amounting to HK$225,000 (2009: HK$242,000)
had been reclassified as investment properties. The
reclassification was a result of the commencement of lease
of properties.

(b) At 31st March 2010, certain leasehold lands amounting to
HK$545,000 (2009: HK$551,000) were pledged as securities
for bank loans as detailed in Note 31.

RIB-—ZF=A=+—RLEFER &T
T2 & 78 1 5 18225,00008 T (ZZEZ AL &F -
242,000 7T) CEFOBAKRENE - B
DETA Y KRG L EPTE -

R-ZE-—TF=F=+—-—HB ETEHE
545,000/ 7T (ZEZ N4 : 551,000/ 7T ) #Y
ME T BIERITERIEIR - FIBENH T
31



16.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 ¥R 2R Bt 51
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. I2&8ME
The Group
AEHE
2010 2009
—E-ZfF —ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
At valuation HEIE
As at 1st April RMWA—H 56,285 60,579
Translation differences BmEZ®E 1,050 (1,983)
Reclassifications SR
- from property, plant and equipment and —BYE BERRKEREES
prepaid lease payments (Note 14 and 15) T FRIE (B iF14515) 669 331
— fair value change upon date of transfer -REREBNAREE 2,631 1,858
Increase/(decrease) in fair value in the DRRAERGEERERFH
consolidated income statement Gl 9,550 (4,500)
As at 31st March R=A=+—H 70,185 56,285

At 31st March 2010, certain investment properties amounting to
HK$48,650,000 (2009: HK$39,600,000) were pledged as securities
for bank loans as detailed in Note 31.

The carrying amount of investment properties held by the Group

W-F—TF=A=+-0 BEFE®E
48,650,000/ 7T (— T Z /14 : 39,600,000/% 7T)
MR AR FIERITEAEIN - SHEHAAIES -

FEER-_ZE-ZEER-_FTNF=A=+—H

at 31st March 2010 and 2009 comprises: ZIEEYEZEBERRE
The Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-EfF —TENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
In Hong Kong under long-term leases EEBZREAMAE 50,050 40,650
Outside Hong Kong: FEBR B LA

Medium-term leases FREIE 3,973 3,183
Long-term leases RHHE 3,300 -
Freehold KA 12,862 12,452

70,185 56,285

@
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

16.

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Note:

(@

During the year ended 31st March 2010, some buildings and prepaid
lease payments amounting to HK$3,300,000 (2009: HK$2,189,000)
have been reclassified as investment properties. The reclassification
was a result of the commencement of lease of properties.

The Group’s properties outside Hong Kong with valuation of
HK$2,626,000 (2009: HK$2,189,000) are registered under the name of
other persons in trust for the Group.

The Group’s investment properties are held for rental purposes
under operating leases were revalued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, a firm of independent valuer who holds a recognised and
relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the
location and category of property being revalued at 31st March 2010
on an open market basis calculated by reference to net rental income
allowing for reversionary income potential.

For the year ended 31st March 2010, up to the date when the
buildings and prepaid lease payments became investment properties,
the difference at that date between the carrying amount of the
properties and their fair value of amount approximately HK$2,631,000
(2009: HK$1,858,000) is recognised directly to equity in revaluation
reserve. As at 31st March 2010, the valuation gain on investment
properties amounting to HK$9,550,000 (2009: loss of HK$4,500,000)
is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

16. IR&ME (1§)

17.

Aat

(a)

(b)

e B

R-E-—ZTF=-ZA=+-—BULFER ©EA
3,300,000/ 7t (Z T T N F : 2,189,000 7T) 2
ETRFURBEBNARBESHHEARED
¥ -BHOBEMERB DA -

AEEE AR E B LAY [ B {E2,626,00078 7T (=
TN 2,189,000 70) 2 WE T A HTALEE
EREAZHMALTETER -

AEBZRENEDFELEHEZHBERE
VHFAEREREBEXERURBEE Y EILE
MR R 2B EXEETDTZEBERITERA
ARZE-—ZEF=A=+—HKBEFEASRAR
WAEN 2 RRHEFE LR ARTIGELESHE

BE-_Z-ZTF=-A=+—RALFE HEEF
LREEBENRERAREMEZR MEZEBRE
B EZ AR ERZE 2 %%2,631,0008T (=%
T4 11,858,000 T) RN IERANERY
HE -NZZT—ZTF=-A=+—H0 REWEMGE
1 %59,550,0007% 7t (= T Z N4 : E5184,500,000
BIT) IR A s RIER ©

4

B2z

The Company

b N
2010 2009
—E—EF —ZTENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMIRMD - IR 320,837 320,837
Impairment loss recognised EERREEE (320,837) (320,837)

In prior years, due to the poor operating performance of the
relevant subsidiaries, the carrying amount had been impaired
by approximately HK$320,837,000 through the recognition
of impairment losses. After considering the poor operating
performance of the relevant subsidiaries, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that investment cost of these
subsidiaries would not have significant value to the Group and
such amount has already been fully written off in prior years, and
impairment loss should not be reversed.

RBEFE REBEMNBARIKERREXRE B
L EL AR (B FERR R (B R 49320,837,00008 7T © £ /&
HEMBARGCERBRE  ARRESERA
MEARZEEXRABETE AREEFREME
REE ZERERNBEAFEEHEME R
EE ST EED -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERR B EE

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. RMBASZIELZ (68)

ARRAR-E-EF=ZA=+—RAZEE2WBR
AFWEMT -

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31st
March 2010 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation or

Paid up
issued ordinary
share capital/

Proportion of
nominal
value of issued
share capital/
registered capital

establishment registered held by the
or registration/ capital Company
operation BEfC®RT ADQAFBERT
Name of subsidiary AMER LB LERE, RA/EMEAEE Principal activities
WEAR AR ey TEHER ZEAH TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# B3
AC (Overseas) Limited British Virgin Islands HK$10,000 100% - Investment holding
HERAES 10,000/% 7T 100% - REZR
Juvenia Montres S.A. Switzerland SFr.1,875,000 - 100% Assembling and
marketing of gold and
jewellery watches
Bt 1,875,000 14 5 - 100% REREHOERERE
BEERH(LE)BSHERALA People’s Republic HK$60,000,000 - 100% Watch trading
of China*
REARAME" 60,000,000/ 7T - 100% BHRES
Time City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 - 100% Watch trading
BEERM (BE)ERAR A% 3,000,000 7T - 100% EHRES
Juvenia (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100% Brand development &
Limited watch trading
B2 (FR)BRAF EE 5,000,000/ 7T - 100% mEERRERE S
Accord Watch & Jewellery Hong Kong HK$3,500,100 - 100% Brand development &
(International) Limited watch trading
VEEHRHE (BE)ERAR ) 3,500,100 7 - 100% mEERRERE S
Asia Commercial Property British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Property holding and
Holdings Limited Hong Kong investment
RBRAHE/BE 127 100% - NERBRRE
AGEESEFABERDA People’s Republic RMB1,000,000 - 100% Watch trading
of China*
REAR AN 1,000,000 A R # - 100% BHRES
Ming Biao Cheng Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100% Watch retailing and trading
AERAHS E - 100% EHRTERES
* Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a * BEPEARANBEZZ2TMALZENEDE -
wholly foreign-owned enterprise.
# Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a # BEPEARKMNEEZIMAENNDE -

domestic enterprise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

17.

18.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, materially affected the results of
the year or net assets of the Group. To give details of all other
subsidiaries would,

in the opinion of the Directors, result in

providing particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

17.

18.

R E S g ()

BEE2RR LINBRARANDEEREARFERE
FAKEEEFE  WEMEEMBMERARZ
B—o5h - AERRIUE -

RERIERTAERE - Z 0B QB8 A =
REEZEEER -

FEUY (FEfT) B (B A S FRIA

The Company

VNN
2010 2009
—E-ZfF —TENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U B B A R T 986,709 1,020,527
Impairment loss recognised ERZBAEEE (709,679) (737,154)
277,030 283,373
The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest ENHBARREAEIKE 8 REBENRENKE
bearing and repayable on demand. EE-
The carrying amount of the amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries as RZZ—ZF=A=+—8 " B (ERWHB
at 31st March 2010 approximated their fair value. AAIRBEZRAEHEAREES -
As at 31st March 2010, the amounts due from subsidiaries were RZE—ZTF=A=+—H EBEUWERA

unsecured and repayable on demand. Except for an amount of
approximately HK$19,477,000 (2009: HK$19,199,000) with interest
charged at prevailing prime rate less 2%, the remaining balance
were non-interest bearing.

The carrying amount had been impaired approximately by
HK$737,154,000 through the recognition of impairment losses
in the year ended 31st March 2009. Certain impairment losses
amounting to approximately HK$27,000,000 were reversed due
to the recovery of such amount during the year. Other than this,
after considering the poor operating performance of the relevant
subsidiaries, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
impairment losses recognised in previous years should not be
reversed during the year ended 31st March 2010.

A B E B R
19,477 0008 L (=&
RERREREFR
S

NERKEE - -BRRBED
T NF : 19,199,000/% 7T)
2%t E A SN - HBFIAR

HEZZTTZAF=A=1+—BLFE E@EEAD
T SRRl (B #9737,154,00008 7T - & TRERE 2
& BE#J27,000,0008 T E BB EA AR FEZER
HEBWE - Rtz i ZERBEWE QR 2K
BREAXER BEFRAE BE-Z-ZTF=A
=t+—BHLFE BEFERRZBEEEET
WD o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B §5 ¥R R B 5F
19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. OB EZIRE
The Group
REE
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
Investments in RER
Club debentures, net GfES 8 4,192 2,180
4,192 2,180
The club debentures are measured at fair value. Fair value of the CHELRALBEHE WBREZALBENR
investment has been determined by reference to the bid price B Ltz EEMET BE_TE—Z4=A
quoted in an active market. The increase in these investment =+—HIEEE B ELE2,012,000% T (=
amounting to HK$2,012,000 for the year ended 31st March 2010 ZENE FHT) DEAHEBEMZ AL EIE
(2009: Nil) was due to increase in their fair values on revaluation. 0 e
20. INVENTORIES 20. &
Inventories in the statement of financial position comprise: R AEAZEERIE
The Group
FEE
2010 2009
—E-FF —EThF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRET TET
Watches E e
Raw materials R4 % 28,827 23,453
Finished goods 2K 262,312 251,228
291,139 274,681
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZEThF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT THET
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFEZRHEE 556,420 406,729
Write down of inventories &z #E - -
Reversal of write-down of inventories BoMR s FE (23,948) (17,209)
532,472 389,520
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

21.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. BSRHthEUERR
The Group allows credit period of ranging from cash on delivery REFBKLTFESEKREPBINERZEZTIOKRZE
to 90 days to its trade receivables. The aging analysis of trade EH -RBREHR BEEAEEEZFEKER
receivables of HK$28,362,000 (2009: HK$20,322,000) which Az B 5 EWIR28,362,0008 L (ZETNF -
are included in the Group’s trade receivables at the end of the 20,322,000 70) ZBRER DT T -
reporting period is as follows:
The Group The Company
AEE AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
2B CZ—TTNF ZZB-BF Z—ITThHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 EWER K
Up to 90 days BIEAZ90H 27,646 20,119 - -
91 to 180 days 91%=180H 77 53 - -
Over 180 days 180H A £ 639 150 - -
28,362 20,322 - -
Allowance for doubtful debts REE (62) 8) - -
28,300 20,314 - -
Other receivables H it & W BR 5K 2,748 3,080 - 7
Loans and receivables B & E R 31,048 23,394 = 7
Deposits and prepayments %o BN HE 28,719 18,063 116 116
59,767 41,457 116 123
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables at 31st March RZE-—TF=A=+—HBEBFREMmEWKE
ZEEERANBEMRE -

2010 approximated their fair value.

The carrying amounts of 82% (2009: 76%) of the Group’s trade
receivables are denominated in Renminbi.

All of the trade receivables are expected to be recovered within
one year.

(@) Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly (see Note 2(g)(i)).

REHE HRYWIRFK 282% (ZZFIF : 76%)
ZHREBEBRARBIE -

EESRKERFAHAIR —FAKE -

(a)

B ARIARRIA A

EUWER R 2 B BB ABERIE - RIER
SEBEELOWEIFEZ AJREMIRM - ExE
AT BEBEEEZENRE S E KR ZUK
(RMEE2(9)00) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

21.

B §5 ¥R R B 5F

SARHhEUIRR (48)

(a) BARUWKRRAE (8)

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the FAREEREEZH (OREETCREREBEEL
year, including both specific and collective loss component, )mT
is as follows:
The Group
AEEH
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZETENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
As at 1st April R A—AH 8 8
Impairment loss recognised BERRZBEERE 54 -
Uncollectible amounts written off R AR 8H - -
As at 31st March R=ZA=+—H 62 8

At 31st March 2010, the Group’s trade receivables of
HK$54,000 (2009: HK$Nil) were individually determined to be

impaired.

At 31st March 2010, specific allowance for doubtful debts
approximately HK$Nil (2009: HK$1,000) was recognised. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Trade receivables that are not impaired

The aging analysis of trade receivables that are neither

RZZE—ZTFE=ZF=+—HB AEEEFE
I BEF/54,0008 T (Z T NF  TET)E
8 SR TE MR o

RZZE—ZTFE=ZF=+—HB CHERAZET

JT) o AN SR B0 M Btk A RS B (R

2o
(b) a2 8 AMUERR

FhE (B B R R B BAR B E 2 B 5 R X

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as BREeDTAT -
follows:
The Group
rEHE
2010 2009
—E—-EfF ZETNEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Neither past due nor impaired NI £ 780 HA 5B (B 27,646 20,119
Less than 90 days past due 1 HR > R 90 H 77 53
Over 90 days past due i HRH3B90H 577 142
654 195
28,300 20,314
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

21.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

Trade receivables that are not impaired (Continued)

Trade receivables are due within 90 days from the date of
billings. Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

SARH BRI (48)

(b)

i 8 < 8 2 mUWARER (5])

B o RN mRE AL MBI - £
ARSI REZEZERERERERZ Y
EAHRFEEZETPA

BAHEEREZEZRYSERES BB
EFPEH ZEEPEAKEZEETHR
o RBBELR  EEERA  ZE5HER
BAFHBERE DTAREEERIRE
HE) - BESRDBRET2BIRE - K&
B E M AR A E R ER R -

22, RERNESEN

The Group The Company
rEH AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BF —ZTTNEFE ZB-TBF —TTIF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET Fi&r FET FET
Cash at bank and on hand ROTEREFHERS 65,690 49,571 11,383 410
Cash and cash equivalents in RirE MBIk & &
the consolidated statement of FEHeRERIT
financial position and the HReRRESEEY
consolidated statement
of cash flows 65,690 49,571 11,383 410
The Group The Company
TEE AAT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F CZTTNF ZZB-BF ZTTIhHF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FETT
Hong Kong dollars BT 24,614 21,584 11,334 341
United States dollars ETT 32 37 31 31
Renminbi AR 39,986 26,951 - -
Others Hi 1,058 999 18 38
65,690 49,571 11,383 410
The effective annual interest rate on short-term bank deposits RARTERZEBRFANENT1.67%E2.24% ;

ranged from 1.67% to 2.24%, with an average maturity from
overnight up to 4 days in 2009. No short-term deposits were made

in 2010.

RIZBZNFREFRZ THIHARBEREN
B R-IE-ZEFAEMBEHFR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables
HK$19,899,000 (2009: HK$28,775,000), the aging analysis
which at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

R 5 e 2 Bi 51

23. BRRHEMERIER
of RBEBR STAESRAMEAERRD 2
of # 5 f {1 B %19,899,000/8 7t (= T T AL :

28,775,000/ 70) ZBRER DATAT ¢

The Group The Company
rE NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—g-8F ~TINF =B-BF —TITNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEr FET FET
Trade payables Z 5 FERIR
Up to 90 days ENEZ=90H 19,370 27,848 - -
91 to 180 days 91£=180H 14 283 - -
Over 180 days 180H M L 515 644 - -
19,899 28,775 - -
Other payables and E A & A BR 3 R
accrued charges fEETE A 30,363 24,282 2,614 2,410
Deposits received Bz e 2,324 1,981 - -
Other tax payable H A fE T B IR 52,612 43,760 - -
Financial liabilities measured LA SRR H
at amortised cost ZemBaE 105,198 98,798 2,614 2,410
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables at R-_ZE—ZTF=A=+—H AEEZHKEM

31st March 2010 approximated their fair value.

FER R R BRI S AR FE A R (B AR -

The carrying amounts of trade payables of the Group are mainly NEBZESEMERZERAETIEZEUARESIE -

denominated in Renminbi.

All of the other trade and other payables are expected to be FEEMB S REMENTBEARN —FREE
settled or recognised as income within one year or are repayable KERBWA » HIFERKEE -

on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

24,

INCOME TAX PAYABLE IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 24.
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Income tax payable in the consolidated statement of

financial position represents:

&=

B Ml FE Ak iR & 2 BRI PRiS iR

(a) HEMBRNBRZEBFAISHNE :

The Group
AEME
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FETT
Balance at 1st April KA —B &R
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HEERER 281 1,500
Translation difference HmEERE 22 33
Provision for PRC Enterprise Income REEFEDEMRSHEE
Tax for the year 4,343 3,019
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid ENPECEMBEH (3,894) (4,271)
Balance at 31st March R=ZA=+T—H2&# 752 281
Deferred tax liabilities recognised (b) PHEIBZIEEHEGE

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
statement of financial position and the movements during the

year are as follows:

REARPBRNEZ T ERERBE N ZELEH
HEEREEZHNT

Revaluation of Revaluation of

of available-for- Investment
sale investments properties Total
BEfAHREEZRE EffREYE “E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET

Deferred tax arising from: BREBEEERE

At 1st April 2009 R-ETAEMA—B - - -
Debited to consolidated income statement FARGZARGER 332 928 1,260
Deferred tax recognised in equity BREAKRZELEHE - 6,419 6,419

At 31st March 2010

Deferred tax assets not recognised

R-F-TFZA=1-A

The Group has allowable tax losses arising in Hong Kong
of approximately HK$364,273,000 (2009: HK$339,257,000)
which are mainly arisen prior to the capital restructuring in
1997, that are available for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

332 7,347 7,679

(c)

RERZIBEERAEE

AEBERBELEZARERRREEBEY
/3364,273,00087T TER —NNLFE
REHEMESE (ZTTNF - 339,257,000
7o) ATAREHEEBEEEN A RARKRER
B o R ARICEF T EEEH TR - B
BRUEERERETRAEE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. INCOME TAX PAYABLE IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(d)

Withholdings tax

Pursuant to new PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which
took effect from 1st January 2008, a 5% or 10% withholding
tax was levied on dividends declared to foreign enterprise
investors from PRC effective from 1st January 2008. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction
of the foreign enterprise investors. On 22nd February 2008,
Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by the PRC tax
authorities to specify that dividends declared and remitted
out of the PRC from the retained earnings as at 31st
December 2007 determined based on the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations are exempted from the withholding
tax. No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised, as the
Company controls the dividend policy of the subsidiaries
of the Group in PRC and it has been determined that it
is probable that the profits earned by the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries for the period from 1st January 2008 to 31st
March 2010 will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

25. LOAN NOTES

B §5 ¥R R B 5F
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The Group and the Company

AEBRARATF
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETHhF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Swiss Francs 550,000 (2009: Swiss I 1% B8550,0001% (:??ﬂi :
Francs 550,000) I £ BB550,000) —F — T 4 5| A
7/8% Loan Notes (the “Notes”) FRIBNEFER ([RE]) -
due 2010, at par %A 2,895 2,907
Translation difference MEERE (10) (12)
2,885 2,895
Accrued interest FEEHFIE 25 28
Interest paid during the year FRERFE (25) (25)
Redeemed during the year FREEMD (2,885) -

- 2,898
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25.

26.

LOAN NOTES (Continued)

Pursuant to the original note agreement dated 31st January 1994,
holders of the Notes had the right at any time on or before 8th
February 2000 to convert all or some of the Notes into shares of
the Company at the conversion price of HK$8.6 per share, subject
to adjustment. Interest on the Notes was waived for a period of
five years with effect from 23rd February 1996 to and including
22nd February 2001. The rate at which interest is charged on the
Notes is 7/8% per annum for a period of nine years with effect
from 23rd February 2001. Interest is accrued over the revised
duration of the Notes so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
charge for each accounting period.

The Company has the right, having given not less than 30 days
and not more than 60 days’ notice to the financial advisor in
respect of the Notes, to redeem all, but not some only, of the
Notes at par, together with interest accrued up to the date of
redemption if the closing price of the Company’s shares listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, converted into US$ at
the prevailing exchange rate, is at least 130% of the conversion
price for 30 consecutive dealing days.

There is also an option granted to the holders of the Notes to
cause the Company to redeem in US$ at a fixed exchange rate
of SFr.1.00 = US$0.67933 any Notes on 23rd February 2008 at
a redemption price of 117.375% of its principal amount together
with interest accrued up to the date of redemption. The Company
had redeemed Notes amounted to Swiss Francs 11,250,000 on
23rd February 2008.

The Company has fully redeemed Notes amounted to Swiss
Francs 550,000 on 4th February 2010.

SHARE CAPITAL

25.

26.

SRTIE (8)

BE-—NANAONE-—A=Z+—RAZ2EERZZER
FOEREAARER-_ZZTZEF_ANA=HZ
AIBERF 1R B AR8.6 B L L AR (B (A THAE) ¥ 2 F

LMBHEEELARQRRD - EHE — NS
F_AZH+=ZHARE_TET—F-_A=+ZH(E
FEZB) 2AFARNAE - BRI EG -2
—i:ﬁl:-ﬁ—iﬁﬁﬁhiﬂquEﬁ?/s% =
BEEIT R BEMENE  NEESESE B
MR EEXBECEHER -

HARBBRNDETBHERSMERAE 2
BRERAMIBERITR) EE=TERXS
B9 RIRMRIE 2 130%s A £ - BIRA R BHEER
SRZUBBEREL AR =ZFTRBRETZHRA T+
BZBAZERT ZEECERAEERERZ
MB)BEEE (MIEEBN) RE -

EERBEANEE —HRERE FAQRRZE
ENF A+ =ZHIERZEBRASEI17.375% 2 FE
EEERFEELBE A 2 F 8 - JUIZ1.005 &
BB 5,0.67933% T 2 [E T E [E K51 8 2 E L E R
ZR - ARQFRER-_ETNF_A-+=HEE
Z=TH E11,250,0005 1 A2 # -

RZE—ZEF-_ANHBHARACEREL S
550,000%% 1 %88 2 Z i -
A% 7K

The Group and the Company

EEERELQT
Number
of shares Value
BRHOHE BE
‘000 HK$’000
Fig FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRRO10B T2 EBR
Authorised: 5£EH§$ :
At 1st April 2009 and 31st March 2010 ZETNFHEA—HBRK
:g_gizﬂ =+—H 1,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAE :
At 1st April 2009 and 31st March 2010 RZZEZNFHA-HBRK
—E-ZTF=-ZA=+—H 600,695 60,070
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

2002 Share Option Scheme

On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme (the
“2002 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme is to encourage qualifying grantees to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for
the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
Qualifying grantees of the 2002 Share Option Scheme means
(i) any employee or any business-related consultant, agent,
representative or advisor of the Company or any subsidiary or
any affiliate; or (ii) any supplier, agent or consultant who provide
goods or services to the Company or any subsidiary or any
affiliate; or (iii) any customer of the Company or any subsidiary or
any affiliate; or (iv) any business ally or joint venture partner of the
Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate.

Previously, the maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme (and under any other scheme of the Company)
shall not in aggregate exceed 10 per cent. of the shares in issue
as at the date of the adoption of the 2002 Share Option Scheme
(the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) provided that the Company may
at any time as the Board of Directors of the Company may think
fit seek approval from its shareholders to refresh the Scheme
Mandate Limit, save that the maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme (and under any other scheme of
the Company) shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the shares in issue
as at the date of approval by the shareholders of the Company
(including those outstanding, cancelled, and lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the 2002 Share Option Scheme or any other
scheme of the Company or exercised options under the said
scheme) shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
limit as refreshed. Notwithstanding aforesaid in this paragraph, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme (and under any other scheme or
the Company) shall not exceed 30 per cent. of the Shares in issue
from time to time.

Refreshment of 2002 Share Option Scheme mandate limit (the
“Refreshment”) and amendment of rules of 2002 Share Option
Scheme (the “Amendment”) had been approved at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 26th August 2008.
Details of the Refreshment and the Amendment were contained
in the circular to shareholders dated 1st August 2008. After the
adoption of the Refreshment and the Amendment, as at the date
of the annual report, a total of 60,069,512 shares (representing
approximately 10 per cent. of the existing issued share capital of
the Company) are available for issue under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme.

27.
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27.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each individual under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and any other scheme (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1 per cent. of the total number of shares in issue.

The period within which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board of Directors of the Company in its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised later
than 10 years from the date on which the option is granted.
Subject to the provisions of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the
Board may in its absolute discretion when offering the grant of
an option impose any conditions in relation thereto in addition
to those set forth in the 2002 Share Option Scheme as it may
think fit (o be stated in the letter containing the offer or the
grant of the option) including (without prejudice to the generality
of the foregoing) continuing eligibility criteria conditions and
the satisfactory performance. However the 2002 Share Option
Scheme itself does not specify any minimum holding period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

The offer of grant of share options may be accepted within 14
days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal value
of HK$1.00 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determined by the Board of Directors,
and shall not exceed a period of ten years after the date of grant.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the Board
may be its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant of
the relevant option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the
offer of the grant of the option) but the subscription price shall
not less than whichever is the highest of: (a) the nominal value
of a share; (b) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the Board
resolution approving the grant of options; and (c) the average of
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the Board resolution approving the grant of
options.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme will expire on 19th September
2012.

No option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
year ended 31st March 2010 and as at 31st March 2010, there
were no outstanding option granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme.
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28. RESERVES 28. fEiE
The Group RE&E
Share Revaluation  Exchange Capital Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve surplus losses Total
RGEE  EfEE ELRE  REAEE  BAB®  2HES g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T T Fix T Tz Tz
(Note (@)  (Note(b)  (Note(d)  (Note(d)  (Note(e)
(Wie) (W) W)  WEg) (Wie)
Balance at 1st April 2008 RZEEN\FEA-A&H 77,991 31,562 16,359 252,381 17,524 (128,763) 267,054
Change in equity for 2008 T )\FrERY
Exchange differences on translation £ EBINHBARNEREK
of financial statements of EECERZE
overseas subsidiaries - - (5,234) - - - (5,234)
Profit for the year REERH - - - - - 39,691 39,691
Change in revaluation reserve on NEERZERRER
revaluation of properties (Note 16(d)  (#/#16(a)) - 1,858 - - - - 1,858
Total comprehensive income AEEEZEYE
for the year - 1,858 (5,234) - - 39691 36,315
Dividend paid (Note 12) ERBRE H212) - - - - - 6,007)  (6,007)
Balance at 31st March 2009 RZEENE=A=1-H
o 77,991 33,420 11,125 252,381 17,524 (95,079) 297,362
Balance at 1st April 2009 RZEENFENA-A&H 77,991 33,420 11,125 252,381 17,524 (95,079) 297,362
Change in equity for 2009 ZETNEIERED
Exchange differences on translation £ EBIHBARNERE
of financial statements of EECERZE
overseas subsidiaries - - 5,510 - - - 5,510
Profit for the year REEET - - - - - 51,231 51,231
Change in revaluation reserve on NEERZERRER
revaluation of properties - (3,787) - - - - (3,787)
Total comprehensive income AEEEZEYE
for the year - (3,787) 5,510 - - 51,231 52,954
Dividend paid (Note 12) BRRE (Hi#12) - - - - - (6,007) (6,007)
Balance at 31st March 2010 RZE-ZE=F=1-H
&4 77,991 29,633 16,635 252,381 17,524 (49,855) 344,309
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28. RESERVES (Continued)

The Company

28. fitfm (£&

RAT]

al

Share Contributed Retained
Premium surplus profits Total
R RE BB R F wEm
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
(Note (a)) (Note (e))
(M it(a)) (W ix(e))
Balance at 1st April 2008 RZZTENFOA—B&EH% 77,991 17,524 142,355 237,870
Loss for the year RNEFEEE - - (13,476) (13,476)
Dividend paid EfRE - - (6,007) (6,007)
Balance at 31st March 2009 R-ZThAF=ZA=+—HE&H 77,991 17,524 122,872 218,387
Balance at 1st April 2009 RZZETNFNA—BHER 77,991 17,524 122,872 218,387
Profit for the year R E g T - - 13,385 13,385
Dividend paid BRIRE - - (6,007) (6,007)
Balance at 31st March 2010 R=-Z—ZF=A=+—H&& 77,991 17,524 130,250 225,765
Note: Hiat -
(a) Share premium @) AR5 (B

The application of the share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the
“Companies Act”).

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with the
revaluation on properties (Note 16(d)) reclassified to investment
properties in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for
land and buildings in Note 2(e).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 2(p).

Capital reserve
The capital reserve was set up upon debt restructuring which will be

used for the purpose of repurchase of issued and fully paid ordinary
share capital.

Bt s BRARE - NN\ —FBREQRTESEL0
(D) ([RRVEDER -

A
EfREERAEDEEREAME (Mi16(d) Y
EEBMGEMEL - WRIEMT2e)MAEFRE LT
RBFHGRRERE -

[ 5 A
ENREEERRESIIERM B MKRME LN
BEN ZH - %R BR IR T2(0) B A0 & 5 R
BRI o

B A A

BRARBNEBEERRL  SARBEDET
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28. RESERVES (Continued)

The Company (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(e)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the amount
transferred from the capital account due to the capital reduction
effective on 28th March 2007. The balance of contributed surplus
account may be utilised in the future in accordance with the
Bye-Laws and the Companies Act, including distribution to the
shareholders subject to compliance with the relevant statutory
requirements on making distributions in the Companies Act.

Distributability of reserves

In accordance with Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981, the share
premium account of the Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

At 31st March 2010, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity holders of the Company was approximately
HK$225,765,000 (2009: HK$218,387,000) subject to the restriction
on the share premium account as stated above. During the year, the
Directors proposed a final dividend of 1.5 HK cents per share (2009: 1
HK cent per share), amounting to approximately HK$9,010,000 (2009:
HK$6,007,000). This dividend has not been recognised as a liability at
the end of the reporting period.

B §5 ¥R R B 5F

28. fi#im (£8)
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29. RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION TO NET 20. BHAINTESE (DH) RESER7HS
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CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES SRS R
2010 2009
—E-ZfF —TTNhEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit before taxation B B A1 % A 56,834 42,710
Adjustments for: PR
Valuation (gains)/losses on KEWMEZHE
investment properties (Uezs) B8 (9,550) 4,500
Valuation gains on available-for-sale AHEHEREZHE (2,012) -
investments g
Reversal of write-down of inventories, net WORFE 2 BB - JF5E (23,948) (17,209)
Write off of other payable 88 E Ath B A BR 3R - (1,521)
Allowance for doubtful debts REBE 54 -
Bad debts written off 8 1 AR = 1
Other interest income H A F 2 A (127) (251)
Interest income from short-term bank deposits 7 552 HIiR 1717 2 2 F B WA - (23)
Interest expenses MEEHA 75 25
Depreciation e 16,179 14,299
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TAETE RIAE 67 71
Operating profit before changes BEESEHAI 2
in working capital £ e 37,572 42,602
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERL () 11,457 (56,241)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 Ik H e Y BR 5K
other receivables (&), (17,996) 10,020
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B 5 & E M AR
other payables #in ) 5,547 (5,282)
Decrease in rental received in advance FE UL A € Rt (75) (75)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations BEMEL(FHA)2ES 36,505 (8,976)
Overseas taxation paid Bz BINEIIE (3,894) (4,271)
Net cash generated from/(used in) Ex/ (R NELER
operating activities ReFE 32,611 (13,247)
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. GREALTRS
The following is a summary of the significant transactions with THHEBLERBBEFANEERABEALTZERR
related parties during the year under review in which they were not S5 HEFTTRAEEPWIFGIERERS -
regarded as connected transactions as defined under the Listing
Rules.
Key management personnel remuneration FEEIRASHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of Group, including AEBTEEREASHH BREINFAQRE
amounts paid to the Company’s directors and certain of highest ENETRSHAT (M FIMEE) 2 XIEWN
paid individuals as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows: T
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Short-term employee benefits EHEERA 18,184 17,787
Post-employment benefits RIKEIET 36 36
18,220 17,823
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 7(b)). emmEe st ATBEIRA] (RME7D) °
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 31. EEitig
As at 31st March 2010, the Group’s general banking facilities RZBE—ZF=ZA=+—8 FAEEERTZ—
were secured by certain leasehold properties and prepaid MRIBTTEEUERESS R A1,100,00008 T (= F
lease payments with carrying value of HK$1,100,000 (2009: ZAF 1,192,000/ L) K% 545,0008 T (ZEF
HK$1,192,000) and HK$545,000 (2009: HK$551,000) respectively ALE 551,000 0) 2 E FREME RAESHERN
as well as certain investment properties at valuation of HIE N E T 5 {E48,650,0008 T (—EZENEF ¢
HK$48,650,000 (2009: HK$39,600,000). 39,600,000/ 70) 2 L E W EEER -
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. HhafE

So far as the Directors are aware, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries is engaged in any litigation or arbitration or claims
which is, in the opinion of the Directors, of material importance
and no litigation or claims which is, in the opinion of the Directors,
of material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened by or against the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

BEEMA  ARBREEAHBERRGEES K
BFERBBEANZAMFL  MELRE fist
= N AR S PN S P N
HEHREREBRXBIRLNERRBERNZ FDRK
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The Group leases certain of its office properties and retail outlets
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from 0.17 to 4.42 years (2009: 0.25
to 3.75 years). Certain rentals for the use of retails outlets are
determined by reference to the revenue of the relevant outlets for
the year and the rentals for certain retails outlets will be escalated
by a fixed percentage per annum.

The operating lease rentals of certain retail outlets are based on
the higher of a minimum guaranteed rental or sales level based
rental. The minimum guaranteed rental has been used to arrive at
the following commitments.

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 33. REMERH
As lessor fERLTASE
Property rental income earned during the year was HK$2,820,000 FRMF2YEES KA R2,820,000% T (=
(2009: HK$3,078,000). At 31st March 2010, the properties held TENF 3,078,000 L) c R_E—ZTF=H1
have committed tenants for lease terms from 0.04 to 1.88 years =+—HB A2 EEEAREAEN T0.04
(2009: 0.3 to 2.6 years), whose tenancy agreements include FE1.88F (ZTTNF : 0.352.6%) 2L -
paying security deposits. EHERZEEEINEREZE -
The Group had total future minimum lease receivables under the REERBEHEBZIT L2 P HEELEHL K
non-cancellable operating leases with the tenants falling due as KEEEWHSABIHBERET :
follows:
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETAEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within one year R—FA 2,382 2,544
In the second to fifth years inclusive REZZEFRF(REERMTF) 1,175 3,057
3,557 5,601
As lessee fERRIAE

AEBRESEHETHAEETHARAZEMER
TEL  KHEPZYEREHRR B0.17FEF4.42
F(ZZTTNGF : 0255 23.75F) - 5 TZEEH
MASEUEZFENRARARAE LAETE
EHHHASGUETHFREE -

ETEERZEENEE Tﬁ%)ﬁ%?ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ%i
HERES (URSERE)HE - LAETIR
RERBHEHE -

The Group had total future minimum lease payments under the AREBRBIIZZ T HEEEHRESY KK
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: EEMNESAEINHBIROT -

2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within one year R—FA 65,090 58,823
In the second to fifth years inclusive REZZERF (BEEERTE) 70,185 66,092
135,275 124,915

The Company had no operating lease arrangements at 31st March KRNI —_E—EFER-_ETZNFE=A=+—H

2010 and 2009.

WELLEHE L -
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme
for all Hong Kong eligible employees. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees.

The retirement benefit cost for MPF scheme charged to the
consolidated income statement represents contributions payable
to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the MPF scheme.

Employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to
make the required contribution under the scheme.

The amount of unvested benefits utilised by the Group to reduce
contributions is HK$Nil for the year (2009: HK$Nil). The amount
of unvested benefits available for future reduction of employer’s
contribution as at 31st March 2010 is HK$Nil (2009: HK$1,840).

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

As at 31st March 2010, the Company had given corporate
guarantee to a bank in connection with banking facilities
granted to the Group amounting to HK$40,000,000 (2009:
HK$40,000,000). The maximum liability of the Company under the
guarantee issued amounting to HK$40,000,000 and no amount
was utilized by the Group as of 31st March 2010 (2009: HK$Nil).
The directors of the Company considered that no recognition
was required because the fair value of such guarantee was
insignificant and that the directors of the Company did not
consider it probable that a claim would be made against the
Company under the guarantee.

SEASONALITY OF OPERATION

The Group’s business in sale of watches and properties leasing
has no specific seasonality factor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBE

37.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2010

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued the following amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31st
March 2010.

The Group has not early applied any of the following new and
revised Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective.
HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part

of Improvements to HKFRSs 2008

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements!

Classification of Rights Issues*

Eligible hedged items’

Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters?®

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions®

Business Combinations'

HKAS 32 (Amendments)
HKAS 39 (Amendments)
HKFRS 1 (Amendments)
HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
(Amendments) Requirement®

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Owners'
Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments®

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July 2009.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July 2009 and
1st January 2010, as appropriate.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2010.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st February 2010.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2011.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July 2010.

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2013.

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning
on or after 1st July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the
accounting treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary.
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37.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2010 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets and will be
effective from 1st January 2013, with earlier application permitted.
The Standard requires all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be measured at either amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows and (ii) have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at fair value. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, changes in fair value of equity investments are generally
recognised in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income recognised in profit or loss. The application of HKFRS 9
might affect the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets.

In addition, as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009, HKAS 17 Leases has been amended in relation to the
classification of leasehold land. The amendments will be effective
from 1st January 2010, with earlier application permitted. Before
the amendments to HKAS 17, leases were required to classify
leasehold land as operating leases and presented as prepaid lease
payments in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The amendments have removed such a requirement. Instead,
the amendments require the classification of leasehold land to
be based on the general principles set out in HKAS 17, that
are based on the extent to which risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of a leased asset lie with the lessor or the lessee.
The application of the amendments to HKAS 17 might affect the
classification and measurement of the Group’s leasehold land at
revalued amount.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised Standards, Amendments or Interpretations
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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38.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (revised 2007),
Presentation of financial statements, and HKFRS 8, Operating
segments, certain comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform to current year’s presentation and to provide comparative
amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first time in 2009.
Further details of these developments are disclosed in Note 2.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFBHRE
RESULTS E 31
Year ended 31st March
BE=A=+—-HLEE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
“ERERE —TELFE —ZTENF —ZETAF ZE-BF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Turnover B 330,233 369,376 475,289 618,813 777,464
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREE AT A, (E518) 7,435 (47,283) 65,998 42,710 56,834
Income tax Frig %t (2,249) (2,511) (4,689) (3,019) (5,603)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERF, (BE) 5,186 (49,794) 61,309 39,691 51,231
Attributable to HER
owners of the Company PANNESIESF SN 5,414 (49,543) 61,309 39,691 51,231
Minority interests DEREE R (228) (251) - - -
5,186 (49,794) 61,309 39,691 51,231
Basic earnings/(loss) BREAXEN(EE)
per share 1.62¢ (10.43¢) 11.36¢ 6.61¢ 8.53¢
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SENGaE
As at 31st March
R=ZBA=+—H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—EERFE ETAEFE EEN\F TIEhEFE ZE-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET FHET FET
Total assets BEE 308,627 271,984 437,932 461,827 520,351
Total liabilities weE 138,657 152,101 110,808 104,395 115,972
Net Assets BEFRE 169,970 119,883 327,124 357,432 404,379
Equity attributable to HEERARQA
owners of the Company BHEAZED 169,649 119,883 327,124 357,432 404,379
Minority interests L B R = 321 - - - -
Total Equity B 169,970 119,883 327,124 357,432 404,379

Certain comparative figures have been restated to reflect the adoption

of the new and revised HKFRS.
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PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

REBFB2MFR

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Name/Location

£

Flat A on 16th Floor, Flat E on
14th Floor, Flat A-H on 12th Floor,
Flat A-B, E-G on 13th Floor,

Hong Kong Industrial Building,
444-452 Des Voeux Road West,

Hong Kong
BB 2 B 7H444-4525%
EEIEKRE

161 2AE ~ 142EE  12IZA-HE X
13#2A-B - E-GZE

Car Parking Space No. 8 on 1st Floor,
No. 8 on 2nd Floor,

No. 8 on 4th Floor, Avalon,

No. 19 Tai Hang Road, Hong Kong
HEERILBI195R

M S 41E85E

21£85% &

118857 (F B L

Unit F, 24th Floor,
Guangdong Gitic Plaza,
Annex Office Tower A,
339 Huan Shi Road East,
Dongshan District,
Guangzhou, the PRC

R M T

BRI IR T R BE 33955k

J& 5 B B K B AN 1
241EFE

Unit E, 8th Floor, Apong Building,
585 Ligling Road,

Xuhui District, Shanghai, the PRC
B A T R B [ TR 55855
EEAESEEE

Unit A, Level 23, Jinming Building,

8 Zunyi South Road,

Changning District, Shanghai, the PRC

PR EETREREEHESK B HRNE2EAE

Part of CH-2304
La-Chaux-de-Fonds, Switzerland
b

CH-2304 La-Chaux-de-Fonds#f {7

*

Saleable area

A EEE

Type
EHE

Industrial
premises

THEME

Car
parking

=&

Office
premises

MAEE

Residential
Building

FERT

Residential

Building

TEEF

Factory

TR

raEmE

Approximate
gross floor area

BMOEERER

2,022 sq.m.”

2,022 J5 K+

N/A

-
(et
3

118 sq.m.

118 5K

160 sg.m.

160 75 K

157 sq.m.

157°F 77K
2,362 sq.m.

2,362F J7 K

Group’s
interest

REME 2

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Lease term

i)

Long-term
lease

RHHEE

Long-term
lease

RHHEE

Medium-term
lease

hHIEE

Medium-term
lease

hHEIEE

Long-term

lease

REHEE

Freehold

KA
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